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PSMS & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
L. P. Investments Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of L. P. Investments
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020,
and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year
ended on thal date and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant @ccounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
“given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2020, and ioss, changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, ancd we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilivies in accordance with these requiraments and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the finarcial statements.

Key Audit Matters
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Emphasis of Matter
Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omjssions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. A G
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Obtain @n understanding of intérnal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management,

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes
of our audit.

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this report are in agreem v
the books of account.

Al
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d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian

g)

Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors
as on 31% March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none
of the directors is disqualified as on 31" March, 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A”. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

The Company dees not have any pending litigations which would
impact its financial position.

The Company has no material foreseeable losses, as required under
the applicable law or accounting standards, on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

There were no amounts which required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”)
issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we
give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3

and 4 of the Order.

New Delhi
12 August 2020
UDIN ! 2o0a584717 ARAAS 2216

For PSMS & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 031059N
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9/:7' Mukesh Kumar Thakur
A Partner
NEDALSS” Membership no.095977
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Annexure-"A" to the Independent Auditors’ Report

[Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of, L. P. Investments Limited
of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of L. P.
Investments Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of th i
statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisation of management
and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For PSMS & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 031059N
k)

Mukesh Kumar Thakur
Partner
Membership no.095977

New Delhi
12 August 2020
UDIN : 2c0a5¢17 AARAR S 42\ 6
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Annexure-"B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of L. P. Investments Limited
of even date)

We report that:

(i). The company does not have any fixed asset or immovable property.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (i) of the order is not applicable to the company in
respect of fixed assets and immovable properties.

(i) ~ The company is a investment company. Accordingly it does not hold any
physical inventory. Thus paragraph 3 (ii) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

(iii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
granted interest free loans to four companies covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 amounting to Rs
9,51,450.

a) In our opinion, the terms and conditions on which loans had been granted to
the bodies corporate listed in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Act were not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the company.

b) The terms of arrangements do not stipulate any repayment schedule and
loans are repayable on notice of demand of a reasonable period.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii)(b)/(c) and of the order is not applicable to
the company in respect of repayment of the principal amount and amount
overdue.

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the company has complied with any of the provisions of section 185 and
186 with respect to loans and investments made.

(v)  The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have
any unclaimed deposits as at March 31, 2028 and therefore, the provisions
of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central
Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the
business activities carried out by the Company. Thus reporting under clause
3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) a)According to information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by us, the Company has generally been regular in depositing with
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues, wherever applicable,
including Goods and Service Tax, Income Tax and other statutory dues
wherever applicable. According to information and explanations given to us,
no undisputed arrears of statutory dues were outstanding as at March 31,
2020, for a period of more than six months from the date they
payable.
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b) According to the records of the Company, there were no dues outstanding in
respect of Goods and Service Tax, Income Tax etc, on account of any
dispute.

(viii) The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from financial
institutions, banks and government or has not issued any debentures.
Hence reporting under clause 3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

(x)  According to information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by
the company or on the company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(xi)  According to information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not paid any
managerial remuneration during the period under review.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of
the order is not applicable to the company.

(xiii) According to information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where
applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) During the year and according to information and explanations given to us
and based on our examination of the records of the company, the company
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debenture during the year under review.

(xv) According to information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not entered
into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(xiv) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For PSMS & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration no. 031059N

O& \"L/ﬁxj/\o«—-f\

',—\ Mukesh Kumar Thakur

-’,1\‘1\ ==

New Delhi n Partner
12 August 2020 %25/ Membership no.095977
UDIN : Leue 5611 AAAAA S 2\ G6 e
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L.P. Investments Limitea
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020

Note
No.

ASSETS

(1) Non-current assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Investments
(i) Loans
(iii) Other financial assets
(b) Other non-current assets (net)

BN =

Total Non-current assets

(2) Current assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 5
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 6

Total current assets

Total Assels

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

(a) Equity Share Capital 7
(b) Other Equity 8

Total Equity

Liabilities

(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 9

Total non-current liabilities

(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables due to
Micro and small enterprises
Other than micro and small enterprises 10

Total current liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Significant cecounting policies

See accompanying Notes to the Firancial Statements 1-14

As At

31st March 2020

As At
31st March 2019

Amount Ks Amount Rs
1,565,204 1,565,204
9.51,450 9,51,450
1,04,000 -

- 10,617,680
12,10,654 21,68,334
28,093 28,093
67,873 30,260
95,966 58,353
13,06,620 22,26,687
10,38,25,000 10,38,25,000

(12,13,39,146)

(12,01,50,784)

(1,75,14,1486)

(1,63,25,784)

1,88,08,966 1,85,13,966
1,88,08,966 1,85,13,966
11,800 38,505
11,800 38,505
13,06,620 22,26,687

PSMS & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn.No. 031059N

Mttt o

Mukesh Kumar Thakur
Partner
Membership no. 095977

Anil Girotra

DIN:00110631

New Delhi
12 August 2020
UDIN : ZeuqSan AQRMA SDUIG

Direclor & CFQ

K.K.Kohli
Director

DIN:00127337

For and on beha!f of Board of Directors
L.P. Investments Limited

NG boiss @

Roopesh Kumar
Company Secretary
PANALYPX08472M



L.P. Investments Limited
Statement of Profif and l.oss for the year ended 31st March 2020

Note Current Year Previous Year
No. Amount Rs. Amount Rs.
INCOME
Revenue from operation 11 2,280 772
Other income %
Total income 2,280 772
EXPENDITURE
Other expenses 12 1,28,962 24,704
Total expenses 1,28,962 24,704
Net loss before tax (1.26,682) (23,932)
Tax expenses:

Current Tax - -

Deferred Tax - - - -
Net loss after tax (1,26,682) (23,932)
Other comprehensive income for the year . -
Tolal comprehensive income for the year (1,26,682) (23,932)
Earnings per equity share of face value of Rs 10 each. 13
(a) Basic (0.012) (0.002)
(b) Diluted (0.012) (0.002)

Significant accounting policies
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 1-14

PSMS & CO. For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants L.F. Investments Limited
Firm Regn.No. 031059N

NGt ot ol

Mukesh Kumar Thakur Anil Giratra K.K.Kohli Roopesh Kumar
Partner ) A A Director & CFO  Director =~ Company Secretary
Membership no. 095977  E0ACC0~ DIN:00110631 DIN:00127337  PAN:ALYPKOB4ZM

New Delhi
12 August 2020
UDIN : rgoasa 11 ARAAAS LG



L.P. Investments Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2020

Amount in Rupees

A EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
[ Refer Note no 14 D(iv) ]

Balance at the beginning |Changes in equity |Balance at the end |Changes in equity [Balance at the end of
of 1st April 2018 share capital of 31st March 2019 |share capital 31st March 2020
during the year during the year
2018-19 2019-20
1,03,37,5000 45,0000 1,03,82,5000 - 1,03,82,5000
OTHER EQUITY
Particulars Retained Earnings Total
As at 31st March 2019
Balance at the beginning of the 1st April 2018 (12,01,26,852) - (12,01,26,852)
Total Comprehensive income for the year - (23,932) (23,932)
Balance at the end of the 31st March 2019 (12,01,26,852) (23,932) (12,01,50,784)
As at 31st March 2020
Balance at the beginning of the 1st April 2019 (12,01,50,784) - (12,01,50,784)
MAT credit reversed (10,61,680) (10,61,680)
Total Comprehensive income for the year - (1,26,682) (1,26,682)
Balance at the end of the 31st March 2020 (12,01,50,784) (11,88,362) (12,13,39,14€)

Significant accounting policies

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

1-14

PSMS & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn.No. 031059N

Mukesh Kumar Thakur
Partner
Membership no. 095977

New Delhi
12 August 2020

UDIN: LouasaTPAAAAAS LG

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

L.P. Investments L

Anil Girotra
Director & CFO
DIN:001108631

imited

M&@“@ T i el

K.K.Kohli
Director
DIN:00127337

Roopesh Kumar
Company Secretary
PAN:ALYPKD842M




L.P. Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

Note
No.

1

1

1.2

1.3

As at

31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

Units Amount Rs

Units  Amount Rs

NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Investments measured at Cost
Unquoted, fully paid up

In Equity Shares of structured entities

Hyderabad Distilleries and Wineries Pvt.Ltd. 1500

Total

In equity shares of other company
Janta Co-operative Sugar Mills Limited
Panipat Co-operative Sugar Mills Limited
Traders Bank Limited

Total

Total of Investments measured at Cost

Category-wise Non current investment
Financial assets measured at cost

LOANS
(Unsecured and Considered Good)
Loans and advances to structured entities

-Blue Skies Investments Private Limited

-Palm Beach Investments Private Limited

-Snowhite Holdings Private Limited

-Ashwa Buildcon Limited

(Formerly known as Industrial Containers & Closure Limited)

Total Loans

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS-NON CURRENT
(Unsecured and Considered Good)

Security deposit with NSDL
Total

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(Unsecured and Considered Good)

Minimum alternate tax credit (MAT credit) for
assessment year 2015-16
[ refer note 14D(iii)

Total

50

=

1,560,000
1,50,000
5,000
200

4

5,204

1,55,204

1,55,204

1,567,813
3,24,888
1,43,750
3,25,000

9,561,450

1,04,000

__1,04,000

1600 1,560,000
1,50,000

50 5,000
200

1 4

5,204

1,55,204
1,55,204
1,657,813
3,24,888

1,43,750
3,25,000

9,517,450

10,61,680

10,61,680

=



L.P. Investments Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2020

Year Ended
J1st March 2020
Amount Rs.
(A) Cash flow from operaiing activities:
Net loss before tax as per statement of Profit and Loss (1,26,682)
Less Dividend received (2,280)
Operating profit before working capital changes (1,28,962)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payable {26,705)
Adjustments for changes in working capital : (26,705)
Cash generated from / (used in) operations (1,55,667)
Income tax (paid) / received =
Net cash from / (used in) operating activities (1,55,667)
(B) Cash flow from Investing activities:
Dividend received 2,260
Security deposit with NSDL (1,04,000)
Net cash from / (used in) investing activities _ (1,01,721)
(C) Cash flow from financing activities:
Boorowings received from ather company 3,00,000
Repayment of hoorowings to director (5,000)
Allotment of fress 45,000 Equily shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid up =
Redemption of 8.6% 4,500 Redeembable Preference shares.of Rs 100/- each -
Net cash from [/ (used in) financing activities 2,95,000
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 37,613
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 30,260
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 67,873
37,613
Notes :
(1) Closing Cash and cash equivalents comprise :
Cash in hand 6,054
Balance with Scheduled Banks:
- in Current Accounts 61,819

6773

Year Ended
31st March 2019
Amount Rs.

(23,932)

(772)

(24,704)
17,860
17,860

(6,844)

(6,844)
772

772

4,50,000
(4,50,000)

(6,072)
36,332

30,260
(6,072)

27,704

2,556

— 30,260

(2) The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in IND AS-7 notified u/s 133 of the

Companies Act, 2013
(3) Figures in brackets indicate cash outgo.

(4) Previous Year's figures have been regrouped/re-classified wherever necessary to conform to current year's classification
(5) Notes 1to 14 form an integral part of the Cash Flow Statement.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

PSMS & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn.Na. 031059N

Mukesh Kumar Thakur
Partner
Membership no. 095977

New Delhi
12 August 2020
UDIN: LguGsSa1 AAAAAS o216

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

L.P. Investments Limited

N(Cieat ot e

Anil Girotra
Direclor & CFO
DIN:00110631

K.K.Kohli
Director
DIN:0D127337

Roopesh Kumar
Company Secretary
PAN:ALYPKOB42M



L.P. Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

Note
No.
5 CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Investments classification at cost
5.1 In Equity shares - Quoted, fully paid up

Glaxo SmithKline Consumer Healthcare Limited
Indage Vintners Limited

McDowell Holdings Limited

Mohan Meakin Limited

Nestle India Limited

Radico Khaitan Limited

Shreno Limited/Alembic Limited ( refer footnote [i] )
Anheuser Busch Inbev India Ltd.(SAB Miller India Lid.)
United Breweries Limited

United Breweries (Holdings) Limited

United Spirits Limited

Total

5.2 In Preference Shares - Quoted, fully paid up
Nirayu Limited-7% Non Conv. Cum. Preferece Shares *

Total

Footnote

As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Units Rs Units Rs
4 23 4 23
100 1,000 100 1,000
8 - 6 -
100 975 100 975
4 19 4 19
10 34 10 34
12 516 12 522
103 438 103 438
5 5 5 5
3 16 3 16
40 63 40 63
3,087 3,093
12 6 - -

[i] The cost of acquisition has been apportioned in accordance of scheme of demerger, approved by NCLT
order dated 26-July-2019, based on the "net book value" of the assets of the demerged undertaking to the

"net worth" of Alembic Limited

5.3 In Mutual Funds - Quoted
Taurus The Starshare (growth)
Total

Total Current investments

Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments
Market Value of Quoted Investments

5.4 Category-wise current investment
Financial assets measured at cost

2500 25,000
25,000

28,093

28,093
3,70,731

28,093

2500 25,000
25,000

_ 28,093
28,093
3,93,902

28,093



L.P. Investments Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

Note As at As at
No. 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Amount Rs. Amount Rs.

6 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash in hand 6,054 27,704
Balance with bank

-in Canara Bank-0307201055784 61,819 2,556
Total cash and cash equivalents 67,873 30,260

7 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

a Authorized Share Capital
1,04,50,000 (Previous year 1,04,50,000) Equity 10,45,00,000 10,45,00,000
Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up.

5,000 (Previous year 5,000) 9.50% cumulative 5,00,000 5,00,000
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each.

Total 10,50,00,000 10,50,00,000

b Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

-1,03,82,500 (Previous year 1,03,82,500) Equity 10,38,25,000 10,38,25,000
Shares of Rs,10/- each fully paid up.

Total 10,38,25,000 10,38,25,000

Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares:-
The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having par value of Rs 10/- per share. Each
holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive

remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will
be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

Note As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
No. Amount Rs. Amount Rs.

7.1 The details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares :

No. of Equity No. of Equity
% held Shares % held Shares
Jagatjit Industries Limited-Holding Company 98.26% 1,02,01,717 98.26% 1,02,01,717

7.2 Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:

Particulars

No. of Shares

No. of Shares

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year

45,000 Equity shares issued and allotted during the year

at Rs 10/- each fully paid up
Equity Shares at the end of the period

OTHER EQUITY

Reserves and Surplus

(a) Retained Earnings
Opening balance
Add: Total comprehensive Income for the year
Add: MAT credit reversed

Closing balance
Total

BORROWINGS
(Unsecured)

Loans and advances from related parties:
[ Refer item no. D(i) of Note No, 13]

-From Holding company:
-Jagatjit Industries Limited

From other company:
-Hyderabad Distilleries and Wineries Private Limited

-From directors

Total

1,03,82,500

1,03,82,500

(12,01,50,784)
(1,26,682)
(10,61,680)

(12,13,39,146)

(12,13,39,146)

1,85,08,966

3,00,000

1,88,08,966

4

1,03,37,500

45,000
1,03,82,500

(12,01,26,852)
(23,932)

(12,01,50,784)

(12,01,50,784)

1,85,08,966

5,000

1,85,13,966

@
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

Note
No.

As at
31st March 2020
Amount Rs.

9.1 Termsl/rights attached to Preference Shares:-
The Company had only one class of 9.50% Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares having par
value of Rs 100/- per share. The company had allotted 4500, 9.50% Redeemable cumulative

Preference share Rs 100 each to M/s Jagatjit Industries Limited, holding company, on 13-06-1998.

10

11

12

13

As at
31st March 2019
Amount Rs.

On and after 13-06-1998, the said 9.50% Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares had the following

rights, privileges and conditions attaching thereto. Viz

) The Preference Shares were entitled to fixed cumulative preferential dividend at the rate of 9.50% per

annum in priority to the equity shares.

(ii) The arrear of cumulative dividend to 9.50% preference shareholders as on 13-06-2018 was Rs 8,55,000.
The company had received letter dated 30-05-2018 from the Preference Shareholders for waiver of
arrear of cumultaive preference shares from M/s Jagatjit Industries Limited. The Company had issued
45,000 fresh Equity shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid up for redemption of 4500, 9.5%, redeemable

cumulative preference shares of Rs 100/- each

TRADE PAYABLE

-Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises -
-Total outstanding dues of crediors other than micro and small 11,800

Total for trade payables 11,800

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Dividend received 2,280

Total for revenue from operations 2,280

OTHER EXPENSES

Advertisments 8,316
Legal and professicnal 21,820
NSDL Subscription fees for demat 35,400
Membership fees for director empanelment 11,800
NSDL connectivity and maintenace 8,260
Filing fees 31,400
Postage and courier ®

Bank charges 2,083
Miscellaneous expenses 443
Audit fees : 9,440
Total for other expenses 1,28,962

EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE (EPS)

Net loss after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (1,26,682)
attributable to equity shareholders

Actual number of Equity shares 1,03,82,500
Weighted average number of Equity Shares 1,03,82,500
Basic earnings per Share (0.012)
Diluted earnings per Share (0.012)
Face value per equity share 10

38,505

38,505

772

772

9,925

4,200
396
743

9,440

24,704

(23,932)

1,03,82,500

1,03,74,116
(0.002)
(0.002)

10



L.P. Investments Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informationannexed to and
forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 14

A. Corporate Information

L.P. Investments Limited ( "the Company" ) is an Indian company incorporated on December
21. 1974, vide registration no. U65921PB1974PLC003526 with the Registrar of Companies,
Punjab and Chandigarh and it’s registered office was situated at P.O. Jagatjit Nagar -144802,
District. Kapurthala, Punjab. The registered office of the Company is situated w.e.f 23" July,
2020 at 4" Floor Bhandari House. 91, Nehru Place. New Delhi-110019. Now the Company is
registered  with  Registrar of Companies NCT of Delhi vide CIN No.
U65921DL1974P1LC367824.  The Company's main objects are to invest or trade in financial
securities.

Company’s accounts are prepared for the year from 1 April, 2019 1o 31" March 2020 and
previous year figures are for the year from 1** April 2018 to 31% March, 2019.

B. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
B.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial assets which have been measured at {air value amount.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian
Accounting standards (*Ind AS’).including the Accounting Standards notified under the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has prepared its financial statements in accordance with the requirement of Indian
GAAP, which includes Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,
2006 and considered as“Previous GAAP™.

Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is its functional currency.
B.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and
rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes
purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing the

assets to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts
and arrangements arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it isprobable that future economic benefits associated with the item

will flow the entity and the cost can be measured reliably.
s :
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informationannexed to and
forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 14

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided using written down value method.
Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule 11 to the
Companies Act, 2013.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
cquipment are reviewed at cach financial year end and adjusted prospectively. if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of a property, plant and equipment are measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is

derecognised.

(b) Provisions and Contisencies:
i =1

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.
Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

(c) Taxation

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the comprehensive income or
in equity.

(i) Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities arc measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively
enacted at the Balance Sheet date.

ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
carrying amout deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting
Ké"é
aQ

period. O\

=




L.P. Investments Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informationannexed to and
forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 14
(d) Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods, is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the
associated cost can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control, or
managerial involvement with, the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

Revenue from operations includes sale of goods measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances. trade discounts and
volume rebates and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

Interest Income from a [inancial asset is recognised using effective interest rate method.

Dividend Income from financial assets is recognized when company’s right to receive
payment is established.

(¢) Financial instruments
(I) Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets , which are not at fair value through profit or
loss, arc added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of
financial assets are recognised using trade date accounting,

Subsequent measurement:
i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

e




L.P. Investments Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informationannexed to and
forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 14

iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair
valued through profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit loss (ECL) model to the
following:

Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive income

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance.
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

The Company uses historical loss experience to determine the impairment loss allowance on
the portfolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased si gnificantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If,
in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves

such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then
the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECI.

(IT) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are directly
recognised in profit or loss as finance cost.

Subsequent measurement:
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest

method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date,
the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informationannexed to and
forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 14
C. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make
Judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenue, expenses.
assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

i) Estimated useful lives of tangible assets:

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets,
after taking into account their estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated
useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of
depreciation to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values
arc based on the Company’s historical experience with similar assets and take into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

ii) Provisions:

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there
will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of
cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the
liability require the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can
be subject to change. Since the cash outflows can take place many years in the future, the
carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and adjusted to take
account of changing facts and circumstances.

D.NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

()  Related Party Disclosures
(a) As per Ind AS-24, the disclosure of transactions with the related parties are given
below:

List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions
have taken place and relationship:

S.No. Name of related party Relationship
L. Jagatjit Industries Limited Holding Company
2. Anil Girotra CFO (KMP)
3 Ravi Manchanda CEO (KMP)
4. K KKohli Director
5. NareshKumarRana Director
6. Gautam Pal Director
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informationannexed to and
forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 14
7. Sanjeev Kothiala Director
8. Roopesh Kumar Company Secretary (wefl 30.09.2019)

(b)Transactions during the year with related parties

S. No. Description Relationship As at 31 As at 31"
March 2020 | March 2019

I Repayment for redemption of Holding cglﬁpany - 4,50,000
9.50% cumulative redeemable
preference shares of Rs 100/-

each.
2. Allotment of Eq ui'tgf shares of Rs Hnl_d'i-ng company . 4,42,170
10/- each on redemption of
9.50% cumulative redeemable :
preference shares of Rs 100/- Associate - 7,830
each.
3. Borrowings received Director - 25,000
4. Repayment of borrowings Director 5,000 15,000 ]

(¢) Outstanding Balances of the related parties in the books of Company at the year end:

S. No Name of related party Nature of Current Year | Previous
outstanding Year
1] Jagatjit Industries Limited Borrowings 1,85,08,966 | 1,85,08,966
(Holding Company)

(if) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

(a) The company has given Corporate Guarantee (s) on behalf of its holding company,
M/s Jagatjit Industries Limited, upto Rs. 160,85,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred
Sixty Crores and Eighty Five Lakhs only ) to M/s Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited,
Lender, and upto Rs. 105,00,00,000/-(Rupees One Hundred and Five crores only),
to M/s Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited, Lender, against the loan(s) availed by
its holding company vide special resolution passed in its General Meeting held on
dated 08 December 2017.
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Note Nao. 14

-Total amount of guarantee Rs 265,85,00,000

-Outstanding amount against the guarantee Rs 6,97,58,270 in favour of Indiabulls
Commercial Credit Limited.

-Outstanding amount against the guarantee Rs 4,08,94,756 in favour of Indiabulls
Housing Finance Limited.

The company has not charged any fee from the borrower [M/s Jagatjit Industries
Limited ] towards corporate guarantee given to the Lenders.

(b) The company filed the income tax return showing returned loss of Rs 4,54,24,187

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

for assessment year 2015-16. The assessment for the said assessment year has
been completed u/s 143 (3) and the Assessing Officer has made addition of Rs
4,48,76,105 resulting carried forward loss has been reduced to that extent. The
company preferred an appeal before the first appellate authority in time against
the said assessment order on 24-October-2017. While the First Appeal proceedings
are in progress the Government of India declared “Vivad Se Vishwas Scheme”
under Direct Tax Vivad Se Vishwas Act 2020. The company filed online application
for resolution of disputes. As per the scheme the assessee undertakes not to carry
forward the losses shown in Income Tax Return for the AY 2015-16. Thereby no
liability on account of Interest and penalty will be levied on the company by
exercising Vivad Se Vishwas Scheme. The appeal filed before first appellate
authority shall stands withdrawn.

In consequence of para Dfii)(b), supra, MAT credit for the said assessment year
2015-16 of Rs 10,61,680 will not be allowable under the Income Tax Act on
acceptance of company’s application for Vivad se Vishwas Scheme. On the other
hand, management is of the view that company will not have sufficient taxable
profits for setting off the said MAT credit during the remaining unexpired period
allowable under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

In Previous year, the company had redeemed, 9.50%, 4500 Cumulative
Redeemable Preference shares of Rs 100/- each fully paid up amounting to Rs
4,50,000. The cumulative amount of dividend in arrear of Rs 8,55,000 (for 20 years
@ 9.50% per annum) had been waived, vide letter dated 30 May 2018, by the
preference shareholder, M/s Jagatjit Industries Limited, holding company.

In previous year, the company had issued 45,000 Equity shares of Rs 10/- each

fully paid up, vide Board resolution dated 08 June 2018. In pursuance of the
provision of Section 55 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies

-~ @/E/ﬁ’;&/
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(vi)

(vii)

New Delhi

or any re-enactment thereof for the time being in force 4,500 9.5% Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs 100/- each aggregating to Rs
4,50,000hadbeen redeemed out of the proceeds of the fresh issue of 45,000
equity shares of Rs. 10 each aggregating to Rs 4,50,000 to the existing
shareholders of the Company.

Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Based on the information available with the Company, the balance due to micro
and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 is Rs. Nil (Previous
yearRs. Nil) and no interest has been paid or is payable under the terms of
theMSMED Act, 2006,

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to
correspond with the current year’s classification/disclosure.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
.. P. Investment Limited

o huom @

Anil Girotra K KKohli Roopesh Kumar
Director & CFO Director Company Secretary
DIN: 00110631 DIN:00127337  PAN: ALYPKO842M

12 August 2020
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PSMS & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
Sea Bird Securities Private Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sea Bird Securities
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2020, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for
the year ended on that date and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2020, and loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters
Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the company as it is an unlisted company
Emphasis of Matter

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Plot No. 9, 2" Floor, Sector-4, Vaishali, Ghaziabad-201010, Uttar Pradesh., Telephone 0120-4208979
5-299/D, School Block, Shakarpur, Delhi-110092.



Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company "in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liguidate the company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for

Plot No. 9, 2" Floor, Sector-4, Vaishali, Ghaziabad-201010, Uttar Pradesh., Telephone 0120-420 7&
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the purpose of expressing an opinion on the offectlveness of the entity’s internal
control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management,

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue
as a going concern.

« FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes
of our audit.

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this report are in agreement with
the books of account.

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Inchan
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors
as on 31 March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none
of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and opergting
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the hest of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company does not have any pending litigations which would
impact its financial position.

i The Company has no material foreseeable losses, as required under
the applicable law or accounting standards, on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 (“the
Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of
the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For PSMS & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 031059N

Mukesh Kumar Thakur
New Delhi Partner

12 August 2020 ‘\(/ Membership no.095977
UDIN : Lypua s dprp AV 6466
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Annexure-"A" to the Independent Auditors’ Report

[Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of, Sea Bird Securities Private
Limited of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act"”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sea Bird
Securities Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction
with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatemen the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisation of management
and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate. :
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For PSMS & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 031059N

Mukesh Kumar Thakur
Partner
Membership no.095977

New Delhi
12 August 2020

UDIN : Lvogqsenn pAAAAU 6966
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Annexure-"B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Sea Bird Securities Private
Limited of even date)

We report that:

(i).  The company does not have any fixed asset or immovable property.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (i) of the order is not applicable to the company in
respect of fixed assets and immovable properties.

(i)~ The company is a investment company. Accordingly it does not hold any
physical inventory of goods. Thus paragraph 3 (ii) of the order is not
applicable to the company.

(i)  The company has not granted loans to any company covered in the
Register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the company has complied with any of the provisions of section 185 and
186 with respect to loans and investments made.

(v)  The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have
any unclaimed deposits as at March 31, 2020 and therefore, the provisions
of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central
Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the
business activities carried out by the Company. Thus reporting under clause
3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) a)According to information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by us, the Company has generally been regular in depositing with
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues, wherever applicable,
including Goods and Service Tax, income tax and other statutory dues
wherever applicable. According to information and explanations given to us,
no undisputed arrears of statutory dues were outstanding as at March 31,
2020, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

b) According to the records of the Company, there were no dues outstanding in
respect of Goods and Service Tax, income tax etc, on account of any
dispute.

(viii) The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from financial
institutions, banks and government or has not issued any debentures.
Hence reporting under clause 3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

& T
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(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the order is not applicable to the
company. ‘

According to information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by
the company or on the company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not paid any
managerial remuneration during the period under review.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of
the order is not applicable to the company.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where
applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debenture during the year under review.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not entered
into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(xiv) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the

New Delhi
12 August 2020

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For PSMS & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration no. 031059N

Mukesh Kumar Thakur
Partner
Membership no.095977

UDIN : voes97 AnAAA U R 66
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Sea Bird Securities Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020

ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets

(a) Financial Assets
(i) Investments

Total Non-current assets

(2) Current assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital
(b) Other Equity

Total Equity

Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings

Total non-current liabilities

(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables due to
Micro and small enterprises

Other than micro and small enterprises

Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Significant accounting policies

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

As At As At
Note 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
No. Amount Rs. Amount Rs.

1 81,00,000 81,00,000
81,00,000 81,00,000
2 437 893
437 893
81,00,437 81,00,893
3 1,00,000 1,00,000
4 (3,85,708) (3,62,702)
(2,85,708) (2,62,702)
5 83,34,500 83,34,500
83,34,500 83,34,500

6
51,645 29,095
51,645 29,095
81,00,437 81,00,893

1-9

PSMS & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 031059N

Mukesh Kumar Thakur
Partner
Membership no. 095977

New Delhi
12 August 2020

UDIN : ve=0471 AAAAAVEALE

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

b i

Sea Bird Securities Private Limited

- ol

Anil Girotra K.K.Kohli
Director Director
DIN: 00110631 DIN: 00127337



Sea Bird Securities Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2020

Note Current Year Previous Year
No. Amount Rs Amount Rs
INCOME
Revenue from operation = -
Total income - -
EXPENDITURE
Other expenses 7 23,006 17,497
Total expenses 23,006 17,497
Net loss before tax (23,006) (17,497)
Tax expenses:

Current Tax - _

Deferred Tax - = - #
Net loss after tax (23,006) (17,497)
Other comprehensive income for the year - s
Total comprehensive income for the year (23,006) (17,497)

Earnings per equity share of face value of Rs 10 each. 8
(a) Basic (2.30) (1.75)
(b) Diluted (2.30) (1.75)

Significant accounting policies

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 1-9

PSMS & CO. For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants Sea Bird Securities Private Limited

Firm's Registration No. 031059N tl! qu
~ - = -

Hcbiao— M@ n 9.8

Mukesh Kumar Thakur Anil Girotra K.K.Kohli

Partner Director Director

Membership no. 095977 DIN: 00110631 DIN: 00127337

New Delhi

12 August 2020

UDIN . 2o SO AARAA YV 65 66



Sea Bird Securities Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2020

Amount in Rupees

A

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Balance at the beginning |Changes in equity |Balance at the end |Changes in equity |Balance at the end of
of 1st April 2018 share capital of 31st March 2019 [share capital 31st March 2020
during the year during the year
2018-19 2019-20
1,00,000 - 1,00,000 1,00,000
OTHER EQUITY
Equity instruments Retained Total
Particulars Earnings
As at 31st March 2019
Balance at the beginning of the 1st April 2018 (3,45,205) - (3,45,205)
Total Comprehensive income for the year - (17.,497) (17,497)
Balance at the end of the 31st March 2019 (3,45,205) (17,497) (3,62,702)
As at 31st March 2020
Balance at the beginning of the 1st April 2019 (3,62,702) (3,62,702)
Total Comprehensive income for the year - (23,006) (23,006)
Balance at the end of the 31st March 2020 (3,62,702) (23,006) (3,85,708)
Significant accounting policies
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 1-9

PSMS & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 031059N

Mukesh Kumar Thakur
Partner
Membership no. 095977

New Delhi
12 August 2020
UDIN : 2429597 Ad AP U LTLL

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Sea Bird Securities Private Limited

Director
DIN: 00110631

K.K.Kohli
Director
DIN: 00127337




Sea Bird Securities Private Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2020

Year Ended Year Ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Amount Rs. Amount Rs.
(A) Cash flow from operating activities:
Net loss before tax as per statement of Profit and Loss (23,006) (17,497)
Operating profit before working capital changes (23,006) (17,497)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables 22,550 16,030
Adjustments for changes in working capital : 22,550 16,030
Cash generated from / (used in) operations (456) (1,467)
Income lax (paid) / received - -
Net cash from / (used in) operating activities (456) (1,467)
(B) Cash flow from Investing activities: = A
Net cash from / (used in) investing activities . _
(C) Cash flow from financing activities:
Loan term borrowings from directors - =
Net cash from / (used in) financing activities - &
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (456) (1,467)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 893 2360
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 437 893
(456) (1,467)
Notes :
(1) Closing Cash and cash equivalents comprise :
Cash in hand 437 437
Balance with Scheduled Banks:
- in Current Accounts - 456
437 893

(2) The above Cash flow slatement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in IND AS-7 notified u/s 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013

(3) Figures in brackets indicate cash outgo.

(4) Previous Year's figures have been regrouped/re-classified wherever necessary to conform to current year's classification

(5) Notes 1 to 9 form an integral part of the Cash Flow Statement.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

PSMS & CO. For and on behalf of Board of Direclors
Chartered Accountants Sea Bird Securilies Privale Limited

Firm's Registration No. 031059N
Ut lu* o Uy
-

Anil Girotra K.K.Kohli
Mukesh Kumar Thakur Director Director
Partner DIN: 00110631 DIN: 00127337

Membership no. 095877

New Delhi
12 August 2020
UDIN: L29<9 7 AABAAY 69 6L



Sea

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

Bird Securities Private Limited

Note

No.

1

1.4

3.1

NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Investments measured at Cost
Unquoted, fully paid up

In Equity Shares of Ultimate Holding Company
LPJ Haldings Private Limited

Total of Investments measured at Cost

Category-wise Non current investment
Financial assets measured at cost

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash in hand

Balance with bank
-in Canara Bank-0307201023118

Total cash and cash equivalents

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized Share Capital
20,00,000 (Previous year 20,00,000) Equity shares
of Rs.10/- each.

Total

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

10,000 (Previous year 10,000) Equity shares of
10/- each fully paid up.

Total

Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares:-

As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

Units Amount Rs

Units  Amount Rs

600 81,00,000

__81,00,000

81,00,000

437

437

2,00,00,000

2,00,00,000

1,00,000

1,00,000

600 61,00,000

81,00,000

81,00,000

437

456
893

2,00,00,000

2,00,00,000

1,00,000

1,00,000

The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having par value of Rs 10/- per share. Each holder

of equity share is entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will
be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.




Sea Bird Securities Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
:0{:0 Units  Amount Rs Units  Amount Rs
3.2 The details of Shareholders holding more than 6% shares :
No. of No. of
% held Shares % held Shares
a. Jagatjit Industries Limited ( Holding Company ) 80% 8,000 80% 8,000
b. Hybrid Holdings Private Limited 19% 1,900 19% 1,900
3.3 Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:
No. of No. of
Particulars Shares Shares
Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 10,000 10,000
Equity Shares at the end of the period 10,000 10,000
4 OTHER EQUITY
Reserves and Surplus
(a) Retained Earnings
Opening balance (3,62,702) (3,45,205)
Add: total comprehensive Income for the year (23,008) (17,497)
Closing balance (3,85,708) (3,62,702)

Total (3,85,708) (3,62,702)




Sea Bird Securities Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

Note
No.

5

BORROWINGS
(Unsecured)
[ Refer item no. D(i) of Note No, 9]

From structured entities:

-Hybrid Holdings Private Limited
-Hyderabad Distillery and Wineries Private Limited
From directors

Total for borrowings

TRADE PAYABLE

-Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises

-Total outstanding dues of crediors other than micro and small

enterprises

Total for other current liabilities

OTHER EXPENSES

Professional charges
Filing fees

Bank charges

Audit fees

Total for other expenses

EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE (EPS)

Net loss after tax as per statement of profit and loss
attributable to equity shareholders

Weighted average number of Equity Shares

Basic earnings per Share

Diluted earnings per Share

Face value per equity share

\

As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Amount Rs. Amount Rs.
1,60,000 1,60,000
81.,00,000 81,00,000

74,500 74,500
83,34,500 83,34,500
51,645 29,085
51,645 29,095
10,110 4,130
3,000 2,400
456 1,627
9,440 9,440
23,006 17,497
(23,0086) (17,497)
10,000 10,000
(2.30) (1.75)
(2.30) (1.75)
10 10




Sea Bird Securities Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 9

A. Corporate Information

Sea Bird Securities Private Limited ( "the Company" ) is an Indian company incorporated on
August 27, 2010, vide registration no. U65993PB2006PTC030689. The company is
registered with the Registrar of Companies, Punjab and Chandigarh, and it’s registered office
is situated at P.O. Jagatjit Nagar-144802, District Kapurthala, Punjab. The Company's main
objects are to make investments in securities/funds.

Company’s accounts are prepared for the year from 1% April, 2019 to 31" March 2020 and
previous year figures are for the year from 1% April 2018 to 31%* March, 2019,

B. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
B.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial assets which have been measured at fair value amount.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian
Accounting standards (‘Ind AS’),including the Accounting Standards notified under the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has prepared its financial statements in accordance with the requirement of
Indian GAAP, which includes Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 and considered as “Previous GAAP”,

Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is its functional
currency.

B.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount
and rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Such cost
includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing the

assets to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange
contracts and arrangements arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
assel, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow the entity and the cost can be measured reliably.

Y




Sea Bird Securities Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 9

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided using written down value
method. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in
Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of a property, plant and equipment are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognised.

(b) Provisions and Contigencies:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.
Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

(¢) Taxation

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the comprehensive
income or in equity.

(i) Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or
substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date.

ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The carrying amount of deferred tax liabilities and assets are re
of each reporting period.




Sea Bird Securities Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 9

(d) Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods, is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been (ransferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable,
the associated cost can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control, or
managerial involvement with, the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

Revenue from operations includes sale of goods measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and
volume rebates and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government,

Interest Income from a financial asset is recognisd using effective interest rate method.

Dividend Income from financial assets is recognized when company’s right to receive
payment is established.

(e) Financial instruments
(I} Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets , which are not at fair value through profit
or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of
financial assets are recognised using trade date accounting.

Subsequent measurement:
i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.




Sea Bird Securities Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 9
iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently
fair valued through profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit loss (ECL) model to the
following:

Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive income

The Company follows ‘simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance.
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

The Company uses historical loss experience to determine the impairment loss allowance
on the portfolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is
used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves

such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

(IT) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are
directly recognised in profit or loss as finance cost.

Suhscqucnt measurement:

Financial liabilitics are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet
date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these
instruments.




Sea Bird Securities Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 9
C. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make
judgement, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenue,
expenses. asscts and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

i) Estimated useful lives of tangible assets:

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets,
after taking into account their estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated
useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of
depreciation to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual
values are based on the Company’s historical experience with similar assets and take into
account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation for future periods is adjusted
if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

ii) Provisions:

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there
will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount
of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of
the liability require the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances,
which can be subject to change. Since the cash outflows can take place many years in the
future, the carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and
adjusted to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

D.NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

(i) Related Party Disclosures

(a) As per Ind AS-24, the disclosure of transactions with the related parties arc
given below:

List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom
transactions have taken place and relationship:

S. No. Name of related party Relationship
1. LPJ Holdings Private Limited Ultimate Holding Company
2. Jagatjit Industries Limited Holding Company
3. Anil Girotra Director
4. K K Kohli Director
5.  Amarjeet Kapoor Director
6. Hemant Kumar Director




Sea Bird Securities Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 9

(b) Transactions during the year with related parties Nil
(ii) Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Based on the information available with the Company, the balance due to micro
and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 is Rs. Nil (Previous
year Rs. Nil) and no interest has been paid or is payable under the terms of the
MSMED Act, 2006.

(iii) Auditors Remuneration

Audit fee including GST Rs 9,440 ( Previous year Rs 9,440)
Professional fees including GST Rs 2,360 ( Previous year Rs 2,360)

(iv) Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to

correspond with the current year’s classification/disclosure.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sea Bird Securities Private Limited

. @L«ﬂk Aho Iy

—
Anil Girotra K KKohli
Director Director
DIN: 00110631 DIN: 00127337

New Delhi
12 August 2020



PSMS & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
S.R.K. Investments Private Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of S.R.K. Investments
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2020, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for
the year ended on that date and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2020, and profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the company as it is an unlisted comp
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Emphasis of Matter
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional i
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes
of our audit.

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the

Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this report are in agree ith
the books of account. m
(o)

FS}
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d)

f)

g)

2.

in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors
as on 31° March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none
of the directors is disqualified as on 31® March, 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would
impact its financial position.

The Company has no material foreseeable losses, as required under
the applicable law or accounting standards, on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

There were no amounts which required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the

Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of
the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

New Delhi
12 August 2020

For PSMS & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 031059N

Mukesh Kumar Thakur
Partner
Membership no.095977

UDIN : 1eq3$39 AR ARV ALA
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Annexure-"A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

[Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of, S.R.K. Investments Private
Limited of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of S.R.K.
Investments Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction
with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 01\1*5 - <O

a
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisation of management
and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financiat
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For PSMS & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 031059N

\-—(/Lﬂ.~o-—’\

Mukesh Kumar Thakur
12 August 2020 - Membership no.095977

UDIN @ veve$gay AAARA Y I
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Annexure-"B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of S.R.K. Investments Private
Limited of even date)

We report that:

(i).  (a) The company does not have any fixed asset. Accordingly, paragraph
3 (i)(a) and 3 (i)(b) of the order are not applicable to the company in
respect of fixed assets.

(ii) ~ The company is a investment company. Accordingly it does not hold any
physical inventory of goods. Thus paragraph 3 (ii) of the order is not
applicable to the company.

(iii)  The company has not granted loans to any company covered in the
Register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the company has complied with any of the provisions of section 185 and
186 with respect to loans and investments made.

(v)  The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have
any unclaimed deposits as at March 31, 2020 and therefore, the provisions
of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central
Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the
business activities carried out by the Company. Thus reporting under clause
3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) a)According to information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by us, the Company has generally been regular in depositing with
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues, wherever applicable,
including Goods and Service Tax, income tax and other statutory dues
wherever applicable. According to information and explanations given to us,
no undisputed arrears of statutory dues were outstanding as at March 31,
2020, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

b) According to the records of the Company, there were no dues outstanding in
respect of Goods and Service Tax, income tax etc, on account of any
dispute.

(viii) The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from financial
institutions, banks and government or has not issued any debentures.
Hence reporting under clause 3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer_' or

further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans d/m

(7]

-y

Plot No. 9, 2" Floor, Scctor-4, Vaishali, Ghaziabad-201010, Uttar Pradesh., Telephone 0120-42089 "‘\ ' :
S-299/D, School Block, Shakarpur, Delhi-110092, & S

I




year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the order is not applicable to the
‘company.

(x)  According to information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by
the company or on the company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(xi) According to information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not paid any
managerial remuneration during the period under review.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of
the order is not applicable to the company.

{xili) According to information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where
applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debenture during the year under review.

(xv) According to information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not entered
into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(xiv) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For PSMS & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration no. 031059N

H A o

Mukesh Kumar Thakur
Partner
Membership no.095977

New Delhi
12 August 2020

UDIN : veve 5991 ARANAY 1321
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S.R.K. Investments Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020

Note
No.
ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Loans 1
(b) Other non-current assets 2
Total non-current assets
(2) Current assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 2
Total current assets
Total Assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 4
(b) Other Equity 5
Total Equity
Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 6
(i) Other financial liabilities 7
Total non-current liabilities
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 8
(i) Trade payables due to 9
Micro and small enterprises
Other than micro and small enterprises
(b) Provisions 10

Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Significant accounting policies
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements  1-14

As At As At
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Amount Rs. Amount Rs.
11,920 -
1,44,930 29,70,60,000
1,56,850 29,70,60,000
19,453 24,144
19,453 24 144
1,76,303 29,70,84,144
1,00,000 1,00,000
(4,15,538) (11,68,767)
(3,15,538) (10,68,767)
16,500 29,78,29,580
2,500 2,500
19,000 29,78,32,080
3,07,755 3,07,755
20,155 13,075
1,44,930
4,72,840 3,20,830
1,76,303 29,70,84,144

PSMS & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 031059N

Mukesh Kumar Thakur
Partner
Membership no. 095977

K K Kohli
Director

New Delhi

12 August 2020
UDIN : Lovasa7 ARAAAV 1123

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
S.R.K. Investments Private Limited

U~

—

DIN: 00127337

Gautam Pal
Director
DIN: 05200503



S.R.K. Investments Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2020

INCOME
Revenue from operation

Total income

EXPENDITURE

Other expenses

Total expenses

Net profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional items
Net profit/(loss) before tax
Tax expenses:
Current Tax
Minimum alternate tax credit for current year
Deferred Tax
Net profit/(loss) after tax
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share of face value of Rs 10 each

(a) Basic
(b) Diluted

Significant accounting policies

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

Note Current Year Previous Year
No. Amount Rs. Amount Rs.
11 36,771 4,26,789
36,771 4,26,789
(36,771) (4,26,789)
12 (7,90,000) -
7,563,229 (4,26,789)
1,44,930
(1,44,930)
7,563,229 (4,26,789)
7,563,229 (4,26,789)
15
75.32 (42.68)
75.32 (42.68)
1-14

PSMS & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No, 031059N

Mukesh Kumar Thakur
Partner
Membership no. 095977

New Delhi
12 August 2020
UDIN : Leoas a1 AARAMAVITR2ZY

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
S.R.K. Investments Private Limited

hobes M

K K Kohli
Director
DIN: 00127337

Gautam Pal
Director
DIN: 05200503



S.R.K. Investments Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2020

Amount in Rupees

A EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Balance at the beginning |Changes in equity |Balance atthe |Changes in equity [Balance at the
of 1st April 2018 share capital during [end of 31st share capital end of 31st
the year 2018-19 March 2019 during the year March 2020
2019-20
1,00,000 - 1,00,000 - 1,00,000
B OTHER EQUITY
Particulars Retained Earnings Total
As at 31st March 2019
Balance at the beginning of the 1st April 2018 (7,41,978) s (7,41,978)
Total Comprehensive income for the year - (4,26,789) (4,26,789)
Balance at the end of the 31st March 2019 (7,41,978) (4,26,789) (11,68,767)
As at 31st March 2020
Balance at the beginning of the 1st April 2019 (11,68,767) - (11,68,767)
Total Comprehensive income for the year - 7,563,229 7,563,229
Balance at the end of the 31st March 2020 (11,68,767) 7,563,229 (4,15,5638)
Significant accounting policies
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 1-12

PSMS & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 031059N

Mukesh Kumar Thakur
Partner
Membership no. 095977

New Delhi T
12 August 2020
UDIN: Levassng AAaaAN TR

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
S.R.K. Investments Private Limited

K K Kohli
Director
DIN: 00127337

Gautam Pal
Director

DIN: 05200503




S.R.K. Investments Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2020

Amount in Rupees

(A) Cash flow from operating activities:

Net profit/({loss) before tax

Add exceptional items

Operating profit before working capital changes
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables
Increase/(Decrease) in borrowings

Adjustments for changes in working capital :

Cash generated from / (used in) operations
Income tax (paid) / received
Net cash from / (used in) operating activities

(B) Cash flow from Investing activities:

Net cash from / (used in) investing aclivities

(C) Cash flow from financing activities:
unsecured borrowings from holding company
Repayment of borrowings to holding company
Borrowing received from related parties

Net cash from / (used in) financing activities
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Notes :

(1) Closing Cash and cash equivalents comprise :
Cash in hand
Balance with Scheduled Banks:
- in Current Accounts

Year Ended
31ist March 2020
Amount Rs.

7,53,229

(7,90,000)

(36,771)
7,080

7,080
(29,691)

{29,691)

(18,03,25,000)
18,03,50,000

25,000
(4,691)

24,144
19,453

(4,691)

425

18,028

19,453

Year Ended
Jist March 2019
Amount Rs,

(4,26,789)

(4,26,789)

(3,540)
3,07,755
3,04,215

(1,22,574)

(1,22,574)

95,746

(11,75,00,000)
11,75,00,000
95,746

(26,828)

50,972
24,144

(26,828)

425

23,719

24,144

(2) The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in IND AS-7 notified ufs 133 of the

Companies Act, 2013
(3) Figures in brackets indicate cash outgo.

(4) Previous Year's figures have been regrouped/re-classified wherever necessary to conform to current year's

classification.
(5) Notes 1 to 12 form an integral part of the Cash Flow Statement.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

PSMS & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 031059N

| e T 8 RPN

Mukesh Kumar Thakur
Partner
Membership no. 095877

K K Kohli
Director
DIN: 00127337

\-';‘a.
Néom——
12 August 2020

UDIN : 1 Q17 AAAAAY 111327

For and on behalf of Board of Direclors
S.R.K. Investments Private Limited

Ga

Y

m Pal

Diredlor
DIN: 05200503



SR

K. Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

Note
No.

1

4

b

LOANS
Loans and advances from related parties:
[ refer note 14D(i) ]

Advance to holding company
-Jagatjit Industries Limited

Total loans and advance

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(Unsecured and Considered Good)
-Capital Advances:

[ for residential flat at Mumbai to

M/s Orbit Corporation Limited ]

[ Estimated amount of contract on capital
account and other commitments remaining
to be executed and not provided for in
accounts Rs Nil (Previous year Rs 19,80,40,000)
Less capital advance written off

[ refer note 14D(iii) |

Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement for
assessment year 2020-21

Total for other non-current assets

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash in hand

Balance with bank
-in Canara Bank-0307201055708
-in State Bank of India-65085708760

Total cash and cash equivalents

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

20,00,000 (Previous year 20,00,000) Equity shares
of Rs 10/- each.

Total

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

10,000 (Previous year 10,000) Equity shares of
Rs.10/- each fully paid up.

Total issued, subscribed and paid up capital

Yy

A

A Y
LD ACCE~

"

As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Amount Rs. Amount Rs.

11,920 -
11,920 -
29,70,60,000 29,70,60,000
(29,70,60,000) -
1,44,930 -
1,44,930 29,70,60,000
425 425
19,028 17,689
- 6,030
19,453 24,144
2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000
2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000
1,00,000 1,00,000
1,00,000 1,00,000

"



S.R.K. Investments Private Limited .
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

Note As at As at
No. 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Amount Rs. Amount Rs.

4.1 Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares:-
The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having par value of Rs 10/- per share. Each holder
of equity share is entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be
in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

4.2 The details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares :
% held No. of Shares % held No. of Shares

Jagatjit Industries Limited 98% 9,800 98% 9,800
Jagatjit Industries Limited J/w Ms.Shakun Jaiswal 2% 200 2% 200

4.3 Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Particulars No. of Shares No. of Shares
Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 10,000 10,000
Equity Shares at the end of the period 10,000 10,000

5 OTHER EQUITY
Reserves and Surplus
(a) Retained Earnings

Opening balance (11,68,767) (7,41,978)
Add: total comprehensive income for the year 7,563,229 (4,26,789)
Closing balance (4,15,538) (11,68,767)
Total other equity (4,15,538) (11,68,767)

Uy V




S.R.K. Investments Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

As at As at
Note 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
No. Amount Rs. Amount Rs.

6 BORROWINGS-NON CURRENT

(Unsecured)

Loans from related parties:-

[ refer note 14D(i]

-Jagatjit Industries Limited-Holding company S 18,03,13,080

-Loans from from directors: 16,500 16,500

Inter Corporate deposits from other parties:-

Hyderabad Distilleries and Wineries Private Limited 29,78,50,000 11,75,00,000

Less borrowings written back (29,78,50,000)

[ refer note 14D(iv) ] .

Total for borrowings 16,500 29,78,29,580
7 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES-NON CURRENT

Outstanding expenses 2,500 2,500

Total for other financial liabilities 2,500 2,500
8 BORROWINGS-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Amount payable to related parties

Ashwa Buildcon Limited 3,07,755 3,07,755

Total for borrowings 3,07,755 3,07,755
9 TRADE PAYABLE

-Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - -

-Total outstanding dues of crediors other than micro and 20,155 13,075

Total for trade payables 20,155 13,075
10 PROVSIONS

Provision for income tax 1,44,930 -

Total for trade payables 1,44,930 -
11 OTHER EXPENSES

Professional charges 19,745 412,496

Filing fees 3,600 1,850

Printing and stationary B 120

Bank charges 3,986 2,883

Interest on delayed payment of taxes - -

Audit fees 9,440 9,440

Total for other expenses 36,771 4,26,789

b
/

A




S.R.K. Investmente Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

Note
No.

12

13

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Borrowings written back
[ refer note 6 and 14D(iv) ]

Less Capital advance written off
[ refer note 2 and 14Djii) ]

Total for exceptional items

EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE (EPS)

Net loss after tax as per Statement of Profit and
Loss attributable to equity shareholders
Weighted average number of Equity Shares
Basic earnings per Share

Diluted earnings per Share

Face value per equity share

As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Amount Rs. Amount Rs.

29,78,50,000 -
(29,70,60,000) .
7,90,000 -
7,53,229 (4,26,789)
10,000 10,000
7532 (42.68)
75.32 (42.68)
10 10
"



S.R.K. Investments Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information annexed to and
forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020 -

Note No. 14

A. Corporate Information

S.R.K. Invesfments Private Limited ( "the Company" ) is an Indian company incorporated

on June 29, 2009, vide registration no.U65999DL2009PTC191718 .The company is registered
with the Registrar of Companies, Delhi and it’s registered office is situated at 5th Floor,
Bhandari House, 91, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110 019. The Company's main objects are to
invest or trade in financial securities.

Company’s accounts are prepared for the year from 1 April, 2019 to 31 March 2020 and
previous year figures are for the year from 1% April 2018 to 31% March, 2019.

B. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
B.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial assets which have been measured at fair value amount.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian
Accounting standards (‘Ind AS”),including the Accounting Standards notified under the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has prepared its financial statements in accordance with the requirement of Indian
GAAP, which includes Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,
2006 and considered as“Previous GAAP™.

Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is its functional currency.
B.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and
rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, il any. Such cost includes
purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing the

assets to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts
and arrangements arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it isprobable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow the entity and the cost can be measured reliably.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided using written down value method.
@ Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the

Q ‘%Cmupanies Act, 2013. (‘V '\\yh
T *




S.R.K. Investments Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information annexed to and
forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 14

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property. plant and
equipment are reviewed at cach financial year end and adjusted prospectively, il appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of a property. plant and equipment are measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is

derecognised.

(b) Provisions and Contigencies:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required 1o settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.
Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

{¢) Taxation

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the comprehensive income or
in equity.

(i) Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively
enacted at the Balance Sheet date.

ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
carrying amount of deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period.

(d) Revenue recognition




S.R.K. Investments Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information annexed to and
forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 14

associated cost can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control, or
managerial involvement with, the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

Revenue from operations includes sale of goods measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and
volume rebates and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

Interest Income from a financial asset is recognised using effective interest rate method.

Dividend Income from financial assets is recognized when company’s right to receive
payment is established.

(e) Financial instruments
(I) Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets . which are not at fair value through profit or
loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of
financial assets are recognised using trade date accounting.

Subsequent measurement:
i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

i) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair
valued through profit or loss.




S.R.K. Investments Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information annexed to and
forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 14
Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit loss (ECL) model to the
following:

Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive income

The Company follows ‘simplified approach™ for recognition of impairment loss allowance.
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime FECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

The Company uses historical loss experience to determine the impairment loss allowance on
the portfolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If,
in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves

such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then
the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

(IT) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are directly
recognised in profit or loss as finance cost.

Subsequent measurement:

Financial liabilitics are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date,
the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

C. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make

judgement, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenue, expenses,
asscts and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions




S.R.K. Investments Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information annexed to and
forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020 -

Note No. 14

and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

i) Estimated useful lives of tangible assets:

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over the estimated uscful lives of the assets.
after taking into account their estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated
useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of
depreciation to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values
arc based on the Company’s historical experience with similar assets and take into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

ii) Provisions:

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there
will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of
cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the
liability require the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can
be subject to change. Since the cash outflows can take place many years in the future, the
carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and adjusted to take
account of changing facts and circumstances.

D.NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

(i) Related Party Disclosures

(a) As per Ind AS-24, the disclosure of transactions with the related parties are given
below:

List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions
have taken place and relationship:

S.No. Name of related partyRelationship

1. Jagatjit Industries Limited -Holding Company

2. Gautam Pal -Director

3. KK Kohli -Director

4. Hemant Kumar -Director

5. Ashwa Buildcon Limited -Group company under same management

6. Hyderabad Distilleries and Wineries —Group company under same management

Private Limited




S.R.K. Investments Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information annexed to and
forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 14

(b) Transactions during the year with related parties

& Description Relationship Transactions Asat 31" Asat3 1"
No. March 2020 | March 2019
I. | Borrowings Holding ::om_pany Taxes paid on - 95,746
company’s
behalf
2. | Borrowings Holding company Repayment | 18,03,25,000 | 11,75,00,000
3. | Borrowings Group co mbany under Acceptance 18,03,50,000 | 11,75,00,000
same management
4. | Borrowings | Group company under Borrowings 29,78,50,000 v
same management written back
4. | Other Group company under | Reimbursement - 3,07,75?
current same management of expense on
liabilities company’s
behalf

(¢) Outstanding Balances of the related parties in the books of Company at the year end:

S. No Name of related party Nature of outstanding | Current Year | Previous Year
Ly Jagatjit Industries Limited Loans and advance-non 11,920 -
. current
(Holding Company)
2. Jagatjit Industries Limited Borrowings-non current - 18,03,13,080
(Holding Company)
3. Ashwa Buildcon Limited Borrowings-current 307,755 3,07,755

(i) Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Based on the information available with the Company, the balance due to micro and
small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 is Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. Nil)
and no interest has been paid or is payable under the terms of the MSMED Act, 2006.




S.R.K. Investments Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information annexed to and
forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 14

(iii) The company had paid capital advance dated 22.07.2010 towards purchase of flat at City
of Mumbai, Maharashtra, India of Rs 29,70,60,000 [Total estimated contract value Rs
49,51,00,000] to M/s Orbit Corporation Limited (Developer) as per the terms proposed
and agreed in the unsigned Agreement for Sale.

The Promoters of M/s Orbit Corporation Limited (Developer), had approached the court
to declare them as insolvent and their petition has been accepted and liquidation order
has been passed by Bombay High Court. The liquidation order passed is in progress and
its assets are under realization proceedings.

The Company has filed suit for recovery of said capital advance in the High Court of
Judicature at Bombay on 12.06-2018. However, management is of view, based on the
progress of the suit and company’s liquidation proceedings, the recovery of said capital
advance is very remote and unrealisable. Accordingly, the said capital advance of Rs
29,70,60,000 has been recognized as unrealisable , vide Board resolution dated
20.03.2020 and written off in the books of accounts during the year.

(iv) The company borrowed (ICD) Rs 29,78,50,000 from M/s Hyderabad Distilleries and
Wineries Private Limited (Lender), one of the group company, during the period from
05.03.2019 to 03.10.2019 as long term borrowings (ICD) to invest in real estate project
at Mumbai, refer para D(iii), supra. The company invested in that project but the said
project/company/promoters have been declared insolvent and liquidation proceedings
are in progress in the court of Mumbai. The lender has appreciated the current financial
position of the company and its incapacity to make repayment of the said ICD.
Accordingly the lender company has resolved to waive off, without any condition, whole
amount of principle outstanding of Rs 29,78,50,000 along with interest, if any, and has
been duly approved by the lender’s Board of Directors in its board meeting held on
10.02.2020 and also in general meeting held on 16.03.2020. In accordance of the waiver
of repayment granted by the lender the company has written back the full principle
amount outstanding of Rs 29,78,50,000 (ICD) during the year.

(v) Auditors Remuneration
Audit fee including GST Rs 9,440 ( Previous year Rs 9,440)
Professional fees including GST Rs 2,360 ( Previous year Rs 2,360)

T




S.R.K. Investments Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information annexed to and
forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 14

(vi) Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary 1o
correspond with the current year’s classification/disclosure.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
S.R.K. Investments Private Limited

a7

—

K K Kohli Gautam Pal
Director Director
DIN: 00127337 DIN: 05200503

New Delhi
12 August 2020
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PSMS & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditors” Report

To the Members of
JIL Trading Private Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of JIL Trading Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020,
and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year
ended on that date and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2020, and loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters
Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the company as it is an unlisted company
Emphasis of Matter

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Plot No. 9, 2™ Floor, Sector-4, Vaishali, Ghaziabad-201010, Uttar Pradesh., Telephone 0120-4208979
5-299/D, School Block, Shakarpur, Delhi-110092,
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, bu

2 \
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the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s mternal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accountlng estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes
of our audit.

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this report are in agreement with
the books of account.

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, r ad- ith
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, S C
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors
as on 31% March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none
of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

b The Company does not have any pending litigations which would
impact its financial position.

ii. The Company has no material foreseeable losses, as required under
the applicable law or accounting standards, on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

ii. There were no amounts which required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the
Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of
the Act, we give in "Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For PSMS & Co.
Chartered Accountants

’t"

£ Mukesh Kumar Thakur
w7/ Partner
Membership no.095977

New Delhi
12 August 2020
UDIN : Yesorsenn AR e A AR smon)

Plot No. 9, 2™ Floor, Sector-4, Vaishali, Ghaziabad-201010, Uttar Pradesh., Telephone 0120-4208979
S-299/D, School Block, Shakarpur, Delhi-110092.



Annexure-"A" to the Independent Auditors’ Report

[Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regqulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of, JIL Trading Private Limited
of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of JIL
Trading Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s Judgement
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the ncial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisation of management
and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For PSMS & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 031059N

Mukesh Kumar Thakur
Partner
Membership no.095977

New Delhi
12 August 2020

UDIN : Lougsan Anf AAR shon
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Annexure-"B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of JIL Trading Private Limited
of even date)

We report that:

(i). The company does not have any fixed asset or immovable property.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (i) of the order is not applicable to the company in
respect of fixed assets and immovable properties.

(i)  According to information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not made any
business during the year. Thus, it does not have any physical inventory
during the year under review. Thus, paragraph 3 (ii) of the order is not
applicable to the company.

(iii)  The company has not granted loans to any company covered in the
Register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the company has not made any loan or investment during the year
under review. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iv) of the order is not applicable to
the company.

(v) The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have
any unclaimed deposits as at March 31, 2020 and therefore, the provisions
of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central
Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the
business activities carried out by the Company. Thus reporting under clause
3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) ajAccording to information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by us, the Company has generally been regular in depositing with
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues, wherever applicable,
including Goods and Service Tax, income tax and other statutory dues
wherever applicable. According to information and explanations given to us,
no undisputed arrears of statutory dues were outstanding as at March 31,
2020, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

b) According to the records of the Company, there were no dues outstanding in
respect of Goods and Service Tax, income tax etc, on account of any
dispute.
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(viii) The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from financial

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

institutions, banks and government or has not issued any debentures. Hence

reporting under clause 3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

According to information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by
the company or on the company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not paid any
managerial remuneration during the period under review.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of
the order is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion according to information and explanations given to us and

based on our examination of the records of the company, transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act,
where applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to information and explanations given to us and based on our

(xv)

examination of the records of the company, the company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debenture during the year under review hence paragraph 3 (xiv)
of the order is not applicable to the company.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not entered
into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(xiv) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the

New Delhi
12 August 2020

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For PSMS & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration no. 031059N

Mukesh Kumar Thakur
Partner
Membership no.095977

UDIN : Y2 55977 AAAAA RS 01
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HL Trading Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020

As At As At
Note 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
No. Amount Rs. Amount Rs.
ASSETS
(1) Current assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 1 22,260 16,482
(i) Loans 2 = 4,06,712
Total current assets 22,260 4,23,194
Total Assels 22,260 4,232,194
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 3 1,00,000 1,00,000
(b) Other Equity 4 (9,43,938) (9,19,836)
Total Equity (8,43,938) (8,19,838)
Liabilities
(1) Non-current liahilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 5 1,35,826 500
(ii) Other financial liabilities 6 12,500 12,500
Total non-current liahilities 1,48,326 13,000
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables due to 7
Micro and small enterprises - -
Other than micro and small enterprises 6,10,100 10,26,890
(i) Other financial liabilities 8 1,07,772 2,03,140
Total current liabilities 7,17,872 12,30,030
Total equity and liabilities 22,260 4,23,194

Significant accounting policies
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 1-11

PSMS & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 031058N

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
JIL Trading Private Limited

vt N
Hema mar eelan Tyagi

Director Directo
DIN: 07739437 DIN: 01572157

Mukesh Kumar Thakur
Partner
Membership no. 095977

New Delhi
12 August 2020

UDIN : 1ouq$87 aAddaa Rsuo




JIL Trading Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2020

Note Current Year
No. Amount Rs.
INCOME
Revenue from operation -
Total income -
EXPENDITURE
Other expenses 9 24,102
Total expenses 24,102
Net loss hefore tax (24,102)
Tax expenses:

Current Tax -

Deferred Tax - -
Net loss after tax (24,102)
Other comprehensive income for the year -
Total comprehensive income for the year (24,102)
Earnings per equity share of face value of Rs 10 each. 10
(a) Basic (2.41)
(b) Diluted (2.41)
Significant accounting policies
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 1-11

Previous Year
Amount Rs.

14,899
14,899
(14,899)

(14,899)

(14,899)

(1.49)
(1.49)

PSMS & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 031059N

Mukesh Kumar Thakur
Partner
Membership no. 095977

New Delhi
12 August 2020
UDIN : weea$97 AAAAA RSUOY

e IR T

&

He

Director
DIN: 07739437

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
JIL Trading Private Limited

AV

Director

DIN: 016721567



JIL Trading Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2020

Amount in Rupees

A EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Balance at the beginning
of 1st April 2018

Changes in equity
share capital
during the year

Balance at the end
of 31st March 2019

Changes in equity
share capital
during the year

Balance at the end of
31st March 2020

2018-19 2019-20
1,00,000 - 1,00,000 - 1,00,000
B OTHER EQUITY

Particulars Retained Earnings Total
As at 31st March 2019
Balance at the beginning of the 1st April 2018 (9,04,937) - (9,04,937)
Total Comprehensive income for the year - (14,899) (14,899)
Balance at the end of the 31st March 2019 (9,04,937) (14,899) (9,19,836)
As at 31st March 2020
Balance at the beginning of the 1st April 2019 (9,19,838) - (9,19,836)
Total Comprehensive income for the year - (24,102) (24,102)
Balance at the end of the 31st March 2020 (9,19,836) (24,102) (9,43,938)

Significant accounting policies

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

1-13

PSMS & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 031059N

Mukesh Kumar Thakur
Partner
Membership no. 095977

New Delhi
12 August 2020
UDIN: 1099587 AAA A AR SWeN

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
JIL Trading Private Limited

&éﬁa agi

Divgu

Hermant Kumar

Director
DIN: 07739437

Directo

DIN: 01572157




JIL Trading Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

Note As at As at
No. 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Amount Rs. Amount Rs.

1 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash in hand 295 295

Balance with bank

-in Canara Bank-03207201055741 21,965 16,187

Total cash and cash equivalents 22,260 16,482
2 LOANS

Unsecured

Amount receivable from holding company - 4,086,712

[ M/s Jagatjit Industries Limited ]

Total other financial assets - 4,06,712

3 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
a Authorized Share Capital

10,000 (Previous year 10,000) Equity shares of 1,00,000 1,00,000

Rs 10/- each '

Total 1,00,000 1,00,000
b Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

10,000 (Previous year 10,000) Equity shares of 1,00,000 1,00,000

Rs 10/- each fully paid up

Total 1,00,000 1,00,000

Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares:-
The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having par value of Rs 10/- per share. Each
holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution
will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

3.1 The details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares :

No. of
% held Shares % held No. of Shares

Jagatjit Industries Lirited 99.99% 9,998 99.99% 9,999

Jagatjit Industries Limited Jiw Ms. Shakun Jaiswal 0.01% - 1 0.01% 1
3.2 Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:

Particulars No. of Shares

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 10,000

Equity Shares at the end of the period 10,000

(Nl




JIL Trading Private Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2020

(A) Cash flow from operating activities:

Net loss before tax as per statement of profit and loss

Operating profit before working capital changes
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(Decrease) in other financial habilities

Adjustments for changes in working capital :

Cash generated from / {used in) operations
Income tax (paid) / received

Net cash from [ (used in) operating activities

(B) Cash flow from Investing activities:

Net cash from / (used in) invesling activities

(C) Cash flow from financing activities:

Borrowing from holding company

Net cash from /(used in) financing activities

Net Increasel{Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Notes :
(1) Closing Cash and cash equivalents comprise :
Cash in hand
Balance with Scheduled Banks:
- in Current Accounts

Year Ended Year Ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Amount Rs. Amount Rs.
(24,102) (14,899)
(24,102) (14,899)
4,06,712 (4,.06.712)
(4,16,790) 11,797,370
(95,368) -

(1,05,446) 7,70,658
(1,29,548) 7,55,759
(1,29,548) 7,565,759
1,35,326 (8,13,878)
1,35,326 (8,13,878)
5778 (58,118)
16,482 74,601
22,260 16,482
5778 (58,119)

285 295

21,965 16,187

22,260

16,482

(2) The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in IND AS-7 notified ufs 133 of the

Companies Act, 2013
(3) Figures in brackets indicate cash oulgo.

(4) Previous Year's figures have been regrouped/re-classified wherever necessary to conform fo current

year's classification.

(5) Notes 1 to 11 form an integral part of the Cash Flow Statement.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

PSMS & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 031058N

Mukesh Kumar Thakur
Partner
Membership no. 095977

New Delhi
12 August 2020
UDIN: e s M ARAPA BR SM0 "]

For and on behalf of Board of Direclors

JIL Trading Private Limited

Hen&At Kumar

Director
DIN: 07739437

DIN: 01572157



JIL Trading Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

OTHER EQUITY

Reserves and Surplus

(a) Retained Earnings
Opening balance
Add: Total comprehensive income for the year
Closing balance

BORROWINGS
(Unsecured)

Loans and advances from related parties:
[ Refer item no. D (i) of Note No, 10 ]

-From holding company: Jagatjit Industries Limited
-From director: Neelam Tyag

Total for borrowings
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES-NON CURRENT

Outstanding expenses
Amount repayable

Total for trade payables

TRADE PAYABLE

-Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
-Total outstanding dues of crediors other than micro

and small enterprises

Total for trade payables

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES-CURRENT

Goods and Service tax payable
Tax deducted at source

Total for other financial liabilities-current

As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Amount Rs. Amount Rs.
(9,19,836) (9,04,937)
(24,102) (14,899)
(9,43,938) (9,19,836)
(9,43,938) (9,19,836)
1,35,326 -
500 500
1,35,826 500
4,000 4000
8,500 8,500
12,500 12,500
6,10,100 10,26,890
6,10,100 10,26,890
69,282 1,30,590
38,490 72,550
1,07,772 2,03,140




JIL Trading Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

Note
No.

9

10

OTHER EXPENSES

Legal and professional fees
Filing fees

Bank charges

Audit fees

Total for other expenses

EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE (EPS)

Net loss after tax as per statement of profit and loss
attributable to equity shareholders

Weighted average number of Equity Shares

Basic earnings per Share

Diluted earnings per Share

Face value per equity share

Current Year

Previous Year

Amount Rs. Amount Rs.
11,745 4,197
1,500 1,000
1,417 262
9,440 9,440
24,102 14,899
(24,102) (14,899)
10,000 10,000
(2.41) (1.49)
(2.41) (1.49)
10 10




JIL Trading Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information annexed to
and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 11

A. Carporate Information

JIL Trading Private Limited ( "the Company" ) is an Indian company incorporated on

August 27, 2010, vide registration no. US51109DL2010PTC207648. The company is
registered with the Registrar of Companies, Delhi and it’s registered office is situated at 4th
Iloor. Bhandari House, 91. Nehru Place, New Delhi-110 019. The Company's main objects
are to do business of marketers. traders dealers, exporter and importers of Alcoholic and other
beverages and to enter into manufacturing contracts with others, to purchase or otherwise
acquire, own elc in the said business and acquire the trade marks, selling rights of other
manufacturers and traders.

Company’s accounts are prepared for the year from 1* April, 2019 to 31 March 2020 and
previous year figures are for the year from 1 April 2018 to 31 March, 2019,

B. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
B.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial assets which have been measured at fair value amount.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian
Accounting standards (‘Ind AS’),including the Accounting Standards notified under the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has prepared its financial statements in accordance with the requirement of
Indian  GAAP, which includes Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 and considered as“Previous GAAP”.

Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is its functional
currency.

B.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount
and rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Such cost
includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing the

assets to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange
contracts and arrangements arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow the entity an -




JIL Trading Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information annexed to
and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 11

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided using written down value
method. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in
Schedule T1 to the Companies Act, 2013,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
cquipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of a property, plant and equipment are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the assct and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognised.

(b) Provisions and Contigencies:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.
Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

(¢) Taxation

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the comprehensive
income or in equity.

(i) Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or
substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date.

ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The carrying amount of deferr iabilities and assets are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period.




JIL Trading Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information annexed to
and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 11
(d) Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods. is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable,
the associated cost can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control, or
managerial involvement with, the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

Revenue from operations includes sale of goods measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and
volume rebates and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

Interest Income from a financial asset is recognisd using effective interest rate method.

Dividend Income from financial assets is recognized when company’s right to receive
payment is established.

(e) Financial instruments
(I) Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets , which are not at fair value through profit
or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of
financial assets are recognised using trade date accounting.

Subsequent measurement:
i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

it) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently- measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,




JIL Trading Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information annexed to
and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 11
iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A fmancial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently
fair valued through profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit loss (ECL) model to the
following:

Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive income

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance.
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

The Company uses historical loss experience to determine the impairment loss allowance
on the portfolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is
used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves

such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

(II) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial liabilitics are recognized initially at fair value and in case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are
directly recognised in profit or loss as finance cost.

Subsequent measurement:

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet
date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these
instruments.




JIL Trading Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information annexed to
and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 11
C. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make
judgement, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenue,
expenses. assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

i) Estimated useful lives of tangible assets:

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets,
aller taking into account their estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated
useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of
depreciation to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual
values are based on the Company’s historical experience with similar assets and take into
account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation for future periods is adjusted
if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

ii) Provisions:

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there
will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount
of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of
the liability require the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances,
which can be subject to change. Since the cash outflows can take place many years in the
future, the carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and
adjusted to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

D.NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

(1)  Related Party Disclosures

(a) As per Ind AS-24, the disclosure of transactions with the related parties are
given below:

List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom
transactions have taken place and relationship:

S.No. Name of related party Relationship

¥ Jagatjit Industries Limited Holding Company
2 Neelam Tyagi Director

3. Hemant Kumar Director

4, Sanjeev Kothiala Director

W




JIL Trading Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information annexed to
and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 11

(b)Transactions during the year with related parties

towards registration of Trade

professional fees, advertisement and

other related expenses.

Marlk,

|'S. No. Description Relationship Asat 31" Asat 3%
March 2020 | March 2019

. Borrowings received : Holding company 11.35.326 |

) Reimbursements of expenses claimed Ho]ding Company 10,19,622 12,20,590 '

(¢) Outstanding Balances of the related parties in the books of Company at the year end:

S. No Name of related party Nature of outstanding | Current Year | Previous Year
I. | Jagatjit Industries Limited | Borrowings received 1,35,326 -
(Holding Company)
2. Jagatjit Industries Limited Loans and advances- - 4,06,712 |
L Reimbursements
(Holding Company) veesiualili
3. | MrNeelam Tyagi Borrowings received 500 500 |

(ii) Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Based on the information available with the Company, the balance due to micro
and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 is Rs. Nil (Previous
year Rs. Nil) and no interest has been paid or is payable under the terms of the
MSMED Act, 2006.

(iii) Auditors Remuneration

Audit fee including GST
Professional fees including GST

"~ Rs 9,440 ( Previous year Rs 9,440)
Rs 2,360 ( Previous year Rs 2,360)

4@}
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JIL Trading Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information annexed to
and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 11

(iv) Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to
correspond with the current year’s classification/disclosure.

For and on behall of the Board of Directors
JL Trading Private Limited

@@/ mxel m Tyagi

Hemant Kumar
Director Director
DIN: 07739437 DIN: 01572157

New Delhi
12 August 2020
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Independent Auditors” Report

The Members of
Yooly Computech Private Limited
(formerly known as JILI Hotels & Resorts Private Limited)

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Yoofy Computech
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2020, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended on that date and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in I(ndia, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and loss, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Cpinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (5As)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of I[ndia together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
vthics, We believe thal the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.




Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the company as it is an unlisted company

Emphasis of Matter

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also Includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policles; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or {o
cease operations, or has no realistic atternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditors” Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
auvdit conducted in accordance with -SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
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reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financiai
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of acceunting estimates and related disclesures made by
management,

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial staterments or,
if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to
continue as a going concern,

= FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all reiationships and other matters that may reasonably
ba thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safequards : : -




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report
that:

a)

b)

d)

f)

g)

it

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit.

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of
those books.

the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this report are in agreemant with
the books of account.

in our opidon, the aforesaid financial staternents comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the written representations received frem the directors
as on 315 March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none
of the directors is disqualified as on 315 March, 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act.

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controis over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A”, Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)

LR e

information and according to the explanations given {o us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would
impact its financial position,

The Company has no material foresecable losses, as required under
the applicable law or accounting standards, on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

There were no amounts which required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.



2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the
Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of
the Act, we give in "Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

For Lajit Kumar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 002085N

P

Lalit Kumar
8, _. Proprietor
12 August 2020 “Membership No. 081071
New Delhi
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Annexure-"A” to the Independent Auditors” Report

[Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of, Yoofy Computech Private
Limited of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controts over financial reporting of Yoofy
Computech Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction
with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria  established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting {(the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
Section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicabie to an audit
of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note reauire
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls systermn over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on

s



the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal
financial centrols system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with

generally accepted accounting priniciples, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisation of
management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent Hmitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
pver financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadeguate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
arocedures may deteriorate. '




Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Lalit Kumar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Lalit Kumar
- Froprietor

12 August 2020 Membership No., 081071

New Delhi

UDIN :




~ Annexure-"B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requlrements’ section of our report to the Members of Yoofy Computech Private
Limited of even date)

We report that:

. (). The company does not have any fixed asset or immovable property.
Accordingly, _
naragraph 3 (i) of the order is not applicable to the company in respect of fixed
assets and immovable properties. '

(i) The Company has neither purchased nor held any inventory. Thus paragraph
3 (ii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(i) The company has not granted loans to any company covered in the Register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (iif) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(v} In our opinion and according to the information and sxplanations given to
us, the company has not granted any loans or made any investment
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iv) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(v)  The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have
any unclaimed deposits as at March 31, 2020 and therefore, the provisions of
the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the GCompany.

(i)  The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central
Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the
business activities carried out by the Company. Thus reporting under clause
3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) a)According to information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by us, the Company has generally been regular in depositing
with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues, wharever
applicable, including Goods and ‘Service Tax, income tax and other
statutory dues wherever applicable. According to information and
explanations given to us, no undisputed arrears of statutory dues were
outstanding as at March 31, 2020, for a year of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

b) According to the records of the Company, there were no dues outstanding
in respect of Goods and Service Tax, income tax etc, on account of any
dispute.

(vii) The Company has not taken any leans or borrowings from financial
institutions, banks and gavernment or has not issued-any debentures. Hence -
reporting under clause 3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.




(ix)  The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the order is not applicable o the company.

(x)  According to information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by
the company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed
or reported during the course of our audit.

(xi)  According to information and explanations given to us and bhased on our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not paid any
managerial remuneration during the year under review.

{xii) {n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given td
us, the company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xil) of the
order is not applicable to the company. '

(xiii} According to information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, transactions with the related
paities are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where
applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable ascounting standards,

(xiv) According to information and explanations given to us and based on ouwr
examination of the records of the company, the company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partily
convertible debenture during the year under review.

(xv) According to information and explanations given to us and based on our
exarmination of the records of the company, the company has not entered into
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 {(xv) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(xiv) The company is not required to be registered tinder section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For Lalit Kumar & Co.

Chartered Accountanis

Firm’s Registration No, 002085N
- b

/ rd
N

Lalit Kumar
Proprietor
12 August 2020 barship No, 081071
New Delhi " ,

UDIN




Voaly Eom Sieeh T Pl
(Formerty known.as JILI Hotels & Resorts Private foinnited)
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020

A Al . As A
Note 3tet WMarch 2020 - 3si Warch 20149
..,__E;?_‘__m Amouni Rs, Anmount Re.
ASSETS
{1) Currant assets
fa) Financial Assels
(i} Cash and cash equivalents g 3,956 46 408
Total current asseis T ¢ 3‘956
Total Assuls T T GER
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(2) Equity Share Capital 2 100,000 106,000
(b) Other Cquity 3 (696,044) (72,0923
Total Eouify 5,856 27,508
Liabifities
(1) Current liabililies
(a) Financia! Liabilities
(i} Trade payables due 1o 4
Micre and small enterprises
Other than micro and small enterprises 5,000 21,506
Total current liabitities 5,060 T 21,508
Tolal equity and labililes 8,956 M. H_M, “““““““ 48,408
Significant accounting policies
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements i-7
Lalil Kumar & Co. For and on behali of Board of Direclors
Charlered Accountants Yoofy Computech Frivale Limiled .
{ormerly known as JiL| Hotels & Resorts Private Limited)
Nargsf Kinar Rasg selam Tyagi
Director \ Direcgior
Membership Mo, 081071 DIN: 00112300 DIN: 01572157

New Delhi

AT Aaare et 20020
£

T AUGUS

UDIN :
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Yoofy Compuiech Private Limited

(Formerly known as JILI Hotels & Resoris Private Limited)

Statement of Profif and Loss for the ppnod ended 31st March 2020

Moto

No.

INCOMIEE
Revenue from aperalion

Toial income

EXPENDITURE

o

Ofher expenses
Total expenses

Net foss before fax
Tax expenses:
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
Net loss after tax
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share of {ace value of 6
{(a} Basic
(b} Diluted

Significarnt accounting policies
Sec accompanying Notes fo the Financial Slatements

Current Year

Amount Rs.

(23 852)

(23,952)

(23,952)

(2.40)
{2.40)

Previous Year
Amount Rs,

(33,086)

{33,086}

(33,086)

(3.31)
(3.31)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Yoofy Computech Private Limited
{formerly known as JILI Hotels & Resoris Private Limited)

|afit Kumar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
e Firm's Registration No. 002085N

A B CEWRRAFor i 'hl /\fl }0

Tl el
'd;\ ______ /)Lalli Kumar iNéah iutiar Rdnd : Neefa[m;

5 Goifcw‘\’ /p,-c)p: ietor Director Directer

Membership No. 081071 DIN: 00112399 OIN: 0572157

New Deihi
12 August 2020
UDIN :




Yoofy Computech Private Limited
(Formerly knowt as JILF Hotels & Resorts Private Limited}

Statoment of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31st March 2020

L

A EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Butanoe af the beginning of Changes in Batance al the end of Changes in equity [Batance at the end
Fui April 2078 equily share 31st March 2018 share capital of 31st March 2020
capilal during the during the year
year 2018-19 2019-20
100,000 - 100,000 | - 100,000

B OTHER EQUITY
f_‘articufars Relained Earnings Total
As at 31st March 2019
Balance at the beginning of the 1st Aprii 2018

Total Comprehensive incorme for the year : (33,086) (33.086)
Balance at the end of the 31st March 2018 - (33,0886) (33,066)
“AS at 31st March 2020 T

Palance at the beginning of the 1st Aprl 2019 {23,086) - T35 086)
Total Comprehiensive income for the year - (23,852) T(03.653)
Balance at the end of the 31st March 2620 {33,086) {23,952) (57,038)

Significant accounting poficies

See scoompanying Notes fo the Financial Stafements 1.7
Lalit Kumar & Ca, For and on behalf of Board of Direclors
Ajhl A ,\;\(‘haﬂered Accouniants Yoofy Computech Privale Limited
% SRirm's Registration No. 002085N ({ormerly Known as JIL) Hotels & Resoris Private Limited)
,-//‘. 7]

N \ R o 25 e
wi 5= ar NarcSTﬂKumdr Rana el yagi
D Propr]eior Director Directar
Membership No, 081071 DIN: 00112399 ! DIN: 01572157

New Delhi
12 August 2020
UDIN :




(Formerty kiiown as JiL Hotels & Resorts Private Limited)

Statement of Cash Flo the period ended 31st March 2020

[£4

8 fur

Fou ihe yeat endoed
31t darch 2020
LLAmount Rs.

Forthe yem ended
st Warch 2040
L Amount Bs,

(A Cash flow from operaling activities!:
Net foss before tax as per statement of Profit and Loss (23,962) (33,086}
Operating profit belore working capital changes (23,952} (33,086)
increasel{Dacrease) in olher current liabilities (16,604} 13 854
Adjustments Tor changes in working capital : {16,500} 13 634

Cash gencrated from f (used in) operations
Income tax {paid) / received

140,452)

{40,452)

(12,252)

Met cash from { {used in) operaling aclivities (16,252
{3} Cash flow from lnvesting activities!
Net cash from 7 (used in) investing activilies o
() Cash flow from financing activities:
Loan term borrowings from direclors {950}
Net cash from / {used in} financing activities . (990}
Net Increasef{Docrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents {40,452) (20,242}
Cash and cash equivalents ai beginning of the year 49,408 63,650
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 8,956 49 408
(46,452) (20,242)
Nofes :
(1} Closing Cash and cash equivalenis comprise :
Cash in hand - )
Balance with Scheduled Banks:
- ~in Cugrent Accounts 8,056 49,408
[Refer Nole 11
8,956 49,408

(2) The above Cash Tiow slatement has been prepared under the indirect method set oul in IND AS-7 nolified ufs 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013

(3} Figures in brackets indicate cash ouigo.

{4) This being the first Balance Sheet subce incomoration therefore previous year's figures have not been provided,

(5) Notes 1 fo 7 form an inlegral part of the Cash Flow Slatement.

This is the Cash Fiow Stalement referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of Board of Direclors
Yoofy Computech Privaie Limited
{formerty known as JILI Hotele & Resorts Private Linted)

e

N @ W= \Q\\»J%K/

Lalit Kumar & Co.
Chanse/re Accountants
_f,/_/'l'r"'e» o Fie? R-gistralidn No., B02085N

-

Mer Deihi | o " g
: . “NEresti Kumar Rana Neefar Tyag
Hirector Direcicr

Proprictor
DIN: DOT123209 DIN: 0572157

T idembership Mo, 681071

New Delii

Y - MM_QQ,August_QOEQ " e e : e oot e eees s A oot e 2o et vt et eaeonms et
UDIN . .




Yooly Computech Private Limited Cormmm
(Formerly known as JIL.i Hotels & Resoris Private Limited)
Noles lo the financial sialemenis for the year ended 31si March

As at s al
Nate 31st March 2020 st March 20148
_No.. - Aamount Rs. _Amount Rs.
1 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balance with bhank in cuirent account: .
-t HOFC Bank Limited-502000250840065 8056 48 408
Tolal cash and cash cquivalents wuj“ﬁglgrj\;‘ A 45408
2 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
5 Authorized Share Caplla
10,000 Equily Shares of Rs. 10/~ each, o 100,000 100,000
b Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/ each fully paid up. 100,000 100,000
Total 100,000 100,000

2.1 Termsfrights attached to Equity Shares:-
The Company has anly one class of Equity Shares having par vatue of Rs 10/- per share. Each holder of
equily share is enlitled {o one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the halders of Equily Shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of ihe Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion b
{he nuimber of equity shares held by the shareholders

2.2 The details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares :

No of No of
shares % held shares % held
a. Jagatjit Industries Limiled 9,889 88.99% 9,999 99.99%
2.3 Reconciliation of the no, of shares cutstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:
Particulars Ko, of shares No. of shares
Equily shares subsciibed during the period 10,000 10,000
Equily Shares at the end of the peviod | 10,000 10,000

3 OTHER EQUITY
Reserves and Surpius
{a) Retained Earnings

0]33““‘!9 hatance (?2’092J (39,006}
Add: total comprehensive income for the vear 23,052) (33,088)
ClOSi_ﬂg balance . (96'044) (?2.092)
Taotal other eguity ' . (96,044} {72,097)

4  TRADE PAYABLE

~Totad outstanding duss of micro and small enterprises - .
-Total outstanding does of crediors other than micto and small 5,000 21,500

Tolal for frade payables

/\
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Yoofy Computechﬂﬁ‘rivate Limited
(Formerly known as JiLl Hotels & Resorts Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statemenis for the year ended 31st March 2020

Note Cugrent Year Previous Year
N Amount Rs Amount Rs

5 OTHER EXPEHNSES

Professional charges 13,380 26,135
fFiting fees 1,200 1,800
Bank charges 4,366 118
Miscellaneous expense G 33
Audit fees 5,000 5,000
Total for other expenses T 23,982 35,088
& EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE (EPS)

Net loss after tax as per Statement of Profi{ and Loss (23,982) {33,088)
atftibutable {0 equity shareholders

Actual number of Equity Shares 10,000 10,000
Weighted average number of Equity Shares 10,600 10,000
Rasic earnings per Share (2.40) (3.31)
Dituled earnings per Share {2.40) (3.31)
Face value per equity shaie i 10 10




Yoofy Compuiceh Private Limited
(formerly known as JIL1 Hotels & Resorts Private Limired)
CSummary of sipnificant accovnding policies and othey explanarory information anonexed to

and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 3st March, 2020

MNote Mo, 7

A. Corporate Information

Yoofy Compufech Private Limited ("the Company") is an Indian company incorporated on
15t May 2017, vide registration no. U74110D1L.2017PTC3174206. The company is registered
with the Registrar of Companies, 1elhi and iis registered office is situated at 4ih Floor,
Bhandari House, 91, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019. The Company’s main objects are
Software designing and development etc.

Company’s accounts are prepared for the year from Ist Apnil, 2019 1o 315t March 2020 and
previous year figures are for the year from 1st Apnl 2018 to 31st March, 2019,

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
B.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial assels which have been measured at fair value amount,

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian
Accounting standards (‘Ind AS”)including the Accounting Standards notified under the
relevent provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has prepared its financial stalements in accordance with the requirement of
Indian GAAP, which includes Standards notified under the Companies (Accouniing
S{andards) Rules, 2006 and considered as“Previous GAAP™.

Company's financial statements arc presented in Indian Rupees which is its functional
CUITency.

B.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Property, plant and equipments

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount
and rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Such cost
includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing the

assets 1o its working condition for its intended use, nol charges on foreign exchange
contracts and arrangements arising from exchange rate variations attributable io the assefs.




Yoofy Computeely Private Limited

(formerty known as JILY Holels & Resoris Private Limited)

Summary of sipnificant accounting policies and other explanatory information annexed fo
and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31t March, 2020

Naute Na. 7

Subsequent costs are included in the assel’s carrylng amount or yecognised as a separate
assel, as appropriate, only when it is probable that futwe economic benefits associated
with the item will flow the entify and the cost can be measured reliably.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided using written down value
method. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the asse(s as prescribed in
Schedule 1} o the Companies Act, 2013,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of properly, plant and
equipment are reviewed at cach financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derccognition of a properly, plant and equipment are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profil and Loss when the asset is

derccognised.

(b} Provisions and Contigencies:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that ap outflow of resources embodying economic benefits wiil be
required 1o settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Contingent labilities are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.
Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

"

(¢} Taxation

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to ifems recognised in the comprehensive
income or i1 equity.

(i} Currentiax
Current tax assets and liabilities are medsured at the amount expected o be recovered

from. or paid fo the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or
substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date.




Yaoofy Computech Private Famited

(formerty known as JIEL Hotels & Resorts Private Eimited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanaftory information annesed (o
and forming part of the Balance Shee€ as st 37st March, 2020

Note Nao. 7
i) Peferrved tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying, amounis of
assels and labilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax Habilitics and assets are measured at the 1ax rates that are expected o apply
in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and

tax laws) that have been enacled or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The carrying amount of deferred tax Habilities and assets are reviewed at the end
of cach reporiing period,

{d) Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods, s recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred 1o the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable,
the

associated cost can be estimated relably, there is no contimuing effective control, or
managerial involvement with, the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured

reliably.

Revenue from operations includes sale of goods measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and
volume rebates and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

Interest Income from a financial asset is recognisd using effective interest raie meibod.

Dividend Income from financial assets is recognized when company’s ripht 1o receive
payment is established. |

(e) Financial instruments

\

(3) Financial Asscis
Initial recognition and measurements

All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assels , which are not at fair value through profit




Yooly Computech Private Limited

(formerty known as JILI Hotels & Resorts Private Limited)

Sumnery of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information anneved w©
and forming parf of the Balance Sheet ag at 31st Mareh, 2000

Note No. 7
or foss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regidar way purchase and saje of
Ninancial assels are recognised using trade dale acconnting,

Subseguent measurement;
i) Finaneial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset s subscquently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and
the contractual tenws of the financial asset pive rise on specified dates to cash {lows {ha
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

i} Financial asseis at fair value through other compreliensive income (FVTOCH

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractnal cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates 10 cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

iil) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of ihe above categories arc subsequently .
fair valued through profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit loss (ECL) model 1o the
following:

Financial assets at amortised cost
Jinancial asseis measured at fair vajue through Other Comprehensive income

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance, .
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company 1o track changes in

credit visk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance hased on lifetime BECLs at each
reporting daté, right from its injtial recognition.

'The Company uses historical loss experience to determine the impairinent foss allowance
on the portiolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date, the historical observed

defanlt rates are updated and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed,

t_.n }/‘\




Yoofy Compufech Private Limited
(formerty known as JILE Hotels & Resorts Private Limited)
Summary of significant accowming-policies and othier explanatory informafion annexed to

and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st Mareh, 2020
Note No. 7

For recopnition of impuairment loss on other financial assets and rigsk exposwe, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant mcrease i the eredit risk
since initial recognition. 1f7 credit risk has not increased significanty, 12-month ECL is
used to provide for impainment loss. However, if credit yisk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. 1, in a subsequent period, eredit quality of the instrumeni ii'l][.)}'()\fL‘:S'

cuch that there is 1o Jonger a significant increase in credit risk sinee initial recognition,
then the enfity reverts 1o recognising impairment foss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

(I} Financial Habilitics
Initial recognition ami measurements

All financial Habilitics are recognized initially at fair value and in case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of dircetly altributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are
directly recognised in profit or loss as finance cost.

Subsequent measurements

Financial labilities are subsequently carried al amortized cost using the effective interest
method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheef
date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due {0 the short maturity of these
instraments.

C. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of esibmation uncertainty:

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management 10 make
judgement, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenue,
expenses, assets and Habilities and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment fo
{he carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

1) Estimated useful lives of tangible assels:

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assels,
afier taking into account their estimated residual value, Management reviews the estimated
aseful lives and residual values of the agsets annually in order to determine the amount of
depreciation to be recorded during any reporting period. The usefu] lives and residual
values are based on he Company’s historical experience with simtlar assels and tzke into
account anticipated tcchnological changes. The depreciation for future periods is adjusted
if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

N
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Yoofv Computech Private Limited

(formerly known as JILI Hotels & Resorts Private Limited)

Summary ef significant accounting policies and other explanatory information annexed to
and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 37st Mareh, 2024

Wote Ma. 7

i) Provisions:

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there
will be a fiture outtiow of funds resulting from past operations or evenis and the amount
of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The Gming of recognition and quantification of
the liability require the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances,
which can be subject 1o change. Since the cash outflows can take place many years in the
juture, the carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and
adjusted to take account of changing facts and circumslances,

P NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
({} Related Party Disclosures
(a) As per Ind AS-24, the disclosure of u‘ansaclions with the related partics are

given below:

List of related parlies where control exists and related partics with whom
transactions have taken place and relaionship:

S. No. Name of reJated party Relationship
1. Jagatjit Industries Limited Holding Company
2. Naresh Kumar Rana Director
3. Neclam Tyagi Director
4. Ravi Manchanda Director
5. Asha Saxena Director

(b) Transactions during the year with related parties

S, No. Description Relationship Asat 31¢ Asat 31%
March 2020 March 2019
1. Borrowings Director - - 990

v {,
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Yooly Cont . Hed

(formerty known as JILI Hotels & Resorts Private Limited)

Summaury of significant accounting policies and other explanatory fnformation sunexed g
and forming part of the Balanee Sheet ag at 31t Muarely, 2020

Note Nao. 7

(i) Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enderprises Development Act, 2006

Based on the information available with the Company, the balance due to mice
and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 is Rs. N and o
interest has been paid or is payable under the terms of the MSMED Act, 2006,

(iii) Previous year’s figures have been reprouped / reclassified wherever necessary te
correspond with the currenit year’'s classification/disclosure.

For and on behalf of the Board of Direciors
Yoofy Computech Private Limited
{ formerly as JILI Hotels & Resorls Private Limited}

( o . \J-

Naresh Kumai R@i Neelaip Tyagi
Director ' Dire-cto‘?i
DIN: 060112399 DIN: 01572157

New Delhi
12 August 2020



Audited Financial Statement
for the period ended 31% March 2020




PSMS & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of
Natwar Liquors Private Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Natwar Liquors Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020,
and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the
period ended on that date and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2020, and loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for
the period ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the company as it is an unlisted company

S o O
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Emphasis of Matter
Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Management'’s Responsibilit_y for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional o \ﬁ;‘rgﬁsi_
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. /T/‘“ \
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

e« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes
of our audit.

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this report are in agreem
the books of account.
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d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors
as on 31% March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none
of the directors is disqualified as on 31* March, 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would
impact its financial position.

ii. The Company has no material foreseeable losses, as required under
the applicable law or accounting standards, on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the
Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of
the Act, we give in “"Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For PSMS & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 031059N
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&\ ()—/T Mukesh Kumar Thakur
New Delhi oA Partner
12 August 2020 Lot Membership no.095977
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Annexure-"A" to the Independent Auditors’ Report

[Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of, Natwar Liquors Private
Limited of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Natwar
Liquors Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the period
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. >
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisation of management
and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For PSMS & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 031059N
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‘éi’"J Mukesh Kumar Thakur

New Delhi S Partner
12 August 2020 NEED A Membership no.095977
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Annexure-"B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Natwar Ligquors Private
Limited of even date)

We report that:

(i). The company does not have any fixed asset or immovable property.

Accordingly, paragraph 3 (i) of the order is not applicable to the company in

respect of fixed assets and immovable properties.

(ii)  According to information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not made any
business during the period. Thus, it does not have any physical inventory

-

during the period under review. Thus, paragraph 3 (ii) of the order is not

applicable to the company.

(iii)  The company has not granted loans to any company covered in the

Register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the company has not made any loan or investment during the period
under review. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iv) of the order is not applicable to

the company.

(v) The Company has not accepted deposits during the period and does not
have any unclaimed deposits as at March 31, 2020 and therefore, the
provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the

Company.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central
Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the
business activities carried out by the Company. Thus reporting under clause

3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) a)According to information and explanations given to us and the records

examined by us, the Company has generally been regular in depositing with
- appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues, wherever applicable,
including Goods and Service Tax, income tax and other statutory dues
wherever applicable. According to information and explanations given to us,
no undisputed arrears of statutory dues were outstanding as at March 31,
2020, for a period of more than six months from the date they became

payable.

b) According to the records of the Company, there were no dues outstanding in
respect of Goods and Service Tax, income tax etc, on account of any

dispute.

Plot No. 9, ot Floor, Sector-4, Vaishali, Ghaziabad-201010, Uttar Pradesh., Telephone 0120-4208979
S-299/D, School Block, Shakarpur, Delhi-110092,



(viii) The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from financial
' institutions, banks and government or has not issued any debentures. Hence
reporting under clause 3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or

- further public offer (including debt instrumerits) and term loans during the

period. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

(x)  According to information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by
the company or on the company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(xi)  According to information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not paid any
managerial remuneration during the peried under review.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of
the order is not applicable to the company.

(xiii) In our opinion according to information and explanations given to us and
based on our examination of the records of the company, transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act,
where applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debenture during the period under review hence paragraph 3
(xiv) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(xv) According to information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not entered
into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(xiv) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For PSMS & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration no. 031059N

Mukesh Kumar Thakur
Partner
Membership no.095977

New Delhi
12 August 2020
UDIN : 2va s AAAPA T 4 9ve
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Natwar Liquors Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020

As At
Note 31st March 2020
No. Amount Rs.
ASSETS
(1) Current assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 1 82,291
Total current assets 82,291
Total Assets 82,291
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 2 1,00,000
(b) Other Equity 3 (29,809)
Total Equity 70,191
Liabilities
(1) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables due to 4
Micro and small enterprises
Other than micro and small enterprises 12,100
Total current liabilities 12,100
Total equity and liabhilities 82,291
Significant accounting policies
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 1-7

PSMS & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 031059N

Mukesh Kumar Thakur
Partner 7o)
Membership no. 095977 NS5 7002/

cDA l",(.;/ g

New Delhi
12 August 2020
UDIN: 1438589 ARAABT B v

For an'd on behalf of Board of Directors
Natwar Liquors Private Limited

Kewal Krishan Kohli avi Manchanda
Director Director
DIN: 0127337 DIN: 0152760



Natwar Liquors Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st March 2020

Note From 6th February 2020
to 31st March 2020
No. Amount Rs.
INCOME
Revenue from operation -
Total income .
EXPENDITURE
Preliminary expenese written off 17,691
Other expenses 5 12,218
Total expenses 29,809
Net loss before tax (29,809)
Tax expenses:

Current Tax -

Deferred Tax - -
Net loss after tax (29,809)
Other comprehensive income for the year -
Total comprehensive income for the year (29,809)
Earnings per equity share of face value of 6
(a) Basic (2.98)
(b) Diluted (2.98)
Significant accounting policies
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 1-7
PSMS & CO. For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Natwar Liquors Private Limited

Firm's Registration No. 031059N

Kewal Krishan Kohli Ra\i Manchanda
Director Director
DIN: 0127337 DIN: 0152760

Mukesh Kumar Thakur
Partner
Membership no. 095977

New Delhi
12 August 2020

UDIN : V5095394 ABAAAT LMo



Natwar Liquors Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31st March 2020

Amount in Rupees

A EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Balance at the beginning of the Changes in equity share capital Balance at the end of 31st
incorporation during the period 2019-20 March 2020
- 1,00,000 1,00,000

B OTHER EQUITY

Equity Retained Total

Particulars instruments Earnings

As at 31st March 2020

Balance at the beginning the incorporation - - 7
Total Comprehensive income for the year - (29,809) (29,809)
Balance at the end of the 31st March 2020 - (29,809) (29,809)
Significant accounting policies

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 1-7

PSMS & CO. For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Natwar Liguors Private Limited

Firm's Registration No. 031059N

oy

Mukesh Kumar Thakur Kewal Krishan Kaohli Ravi Manchanda
Partner Director irector
Membership no. 095977 DIN: 0127337 DIN: 0152760
New Delhi

12 August 2020

UDIN ' V3 47 AARGAT 31w



Natwar Liquors Private Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended 31st March 2020

For Period Ended
31st March 2020

Amount Rs.
(A) Cash flow from operating activities:
Net loss before tax as per statement of Profit and Loss (29,809)
Operating profit before working capital changes (29,809)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payable 12,100
Adjustments for changes in working capital : 12,100
Cash generated from / (used in) operations (17,709)
Income tax (paid) / received :
Net cash from / (used in) operating activities (17,709)
(B) Cash flow from Investing activities: =
Net cash from / (used in) investing activities <
(C) Cash flow from financing activities:
Equity share subscription by holding company 99,990
Equity share subscription by holding company jointly with first director 10
Net cash from [ (used in) financing activities 1,00,000
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 82,291
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year s
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 82,291
82,291
Notes :
(1) Closing Cash and cash equivalents comprise :
Cash in hand =
Balance with Scheduled Banks: ;
- in Current Accounts 82,291
82,291

(2) The above Cash flow stalement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in IND AS-7 notified u/s 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013

(3) Figures in brackets indicate cash outgo.

(4) This being the first Balance Sheet subce incorporation therefore previous year's figures have not been provided.

(5) Notes 1 to 7 form an integral parl of the Cash Flow Statement.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

PSMS & CO. : For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Natwar Liquors Private Limited

Firm's Registration No. 031059N I

Mukesh Kumar Thakur Kewal Krishan Kohli avi Manchanda
Partner \ =\ Director irector
Membership no. 095977 \"\!"’,7?:\ DIN: 0127337 DIN: 0152760

NI
New Delhi
12 August 2020
UDIN: WS89y ARAAA T LYo



Natwar Liquors Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2020

As at

Note 31st March 2020
No. Amount Rs,
1 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balance with bank in current account:
-in HDFC Bank Limited-50200047863932 82,291
Total cash and cash equivalents 82,291
2 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
a Authorized Share Capital
10,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each. 1,00,000
b Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
10,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up. 1,00,000
Total 1,00,000
2.1 Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares:-
The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having par value of Rs 10/- per share. Each holder of
equity share is entitled to one vote per share.
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders
2.2 The details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares :
No of shares % held
a Jagatjit Industries Limited 8,998 99.99%
b Jagatjit Industries Limited J/w Ravi Manchanda 1 0.01%
2.3 Reconciliation of the no. of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:
Particulars
Equity shares subscribed during the period 10,000
Equity Shares at the end of the period 10,000
3 OTHER EQUITY
Reserves and Surplus
(a) Retained Earnings
Opening balance -
Total comprehensive income for the period (29,809)
Closing balance (29,809)
Total (29,809)
4 TRADE PAYABLE

-Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises -
-Total outstanding dues of crediors other than micro and small enterprises 12,100

Total for trade payables 12,100




Natwar Liquors Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2020

From 6th February 2020

Note to 31st March 2020
No. Amount Rs

5 OTHER EXPENSES

Professional charges 2,360
Filing fees 300
Bank charges 118
Audit fees 9,440
Total for other expenses 12,218

6 EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE (EPS)

Net loss after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (29,809)
attributable to equity shareholders

Actual number of Equity Shares 10,000
Weighted average number of Equity Shares 10,000
Basic earnings per Share (2.98)
Diluted earnings per Share (2.98)
Face value per equity share 10




Natwar Liquors Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information annexed to
and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st Ma rchy 2020

Note No. 7

A. Corporate Information

Natwar Liquors Private Limited ( "the Company" ) is an Indian company incorporated
on 6™ FFebruary 2020, vide registration no. U15549DL2020PTC361481. The company is
registered with the Registrar of Companies, Delhi and its registered office is situated at 4"
Floor. Bhandari House, 91, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019. The Company's main
objects is to carry on the business of manufacturers, marketers, Traders. Wholesalers,
Distributor, Importers and Exporters of Alcoholic and other Beverages in India or
Abroad.

The Company’s accounts are prepared for the period from 6™ February 2020 to 31% March
2020.

B. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
B.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial assets which have been measured at fair value amount.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian
Accounting standards (‘Ind AS’), including the Accounting Standards notified under the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is its functional
currency.

B.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount
and rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Such cost
includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing the

assets to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange
contracts and arrangements arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow the entity and the cost can be measured reliably.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided using written down value
method. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.




Natwar Liquors Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information annexed to
and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 7

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of a property, plant and cquipment are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the assel is
derecognised.

(b) Provisions and Contigencies:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.
Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

(c) Taxation

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the comprehensive
income or in equity.

(i) Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that arc enacted or
substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date.

ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit.

“Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The carrying amount of deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period.

¥ o




Natwar Liquors Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information annexed to
and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 7

(d) Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods, is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable.
the associated cost can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control, or
managerial involvement with, the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

Revenue [rom operations includes sale of goods measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and
volume rebates and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

Interest Income from a financial asset is recognisd using effective interest rate method.

Dividend Income from financial assets is recognized when company’s right to receive
payment is established.

(e) Financial instruments
(I) Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets , which are not at fair value through profit
or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of
financial assets are recognised using trade date accounting.

Subsequent measurement:
i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

+\




Natwar Liquors Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information annexed to
and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No, 7

iii) Financial asscts at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently
fair valued through profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit loss (ECL) model to the
following:

Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive income

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance.
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

The Company uses historical loss experience to determine the impairment loss allowance
on the portfolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is
used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves

such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

(I1) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are
directly recognised in profit or loss as finance cost.

Subsequent measurement:

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet




Natwar Liquors Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information annexed to
and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 7
date. the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these
instruments.

C. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make
judgement, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenue,
expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

i) Estimated useful lives of tangible assets:

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets,
after taking into account their estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated
useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of
depreciation to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual
values are based on the Company’s historical experience with similar assets and take into
account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation for future periods is adjusted
if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

i) Provisions:

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there
will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount
of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of
the Tliability require the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances,
which can be subject to change. Since the cash outflows can take place many years in the
future, the carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and
adjusted to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

D.NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

(i) Related Party Disclosures

a) As per Ind AS-24, the disclosure of transactions with the related parties are
p p
given below:

List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom
transactions have taken place and relationship:

S. No. Name of related party Relationship

1. Jagatjit Industries Limited Holding Company
2. Kewal Krishan Kohli Director
3. Ravi Manchanda Director




Natwar Liquors Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information annexed to
and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note No. 7

(b) Transactions during the year with related parties

8. Description Relationship IFor the period ended 31
No. March 2020 J
I. | Subscription to Equity Shares Holding Company 99,990
2. | Kewal Krishan Kohli Director R i0 |

(ii) Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Based on the information available with the Company, the balance due to micro
and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 is Rs. Nil and no
interest has been paid or is payable under the terms of the MSMED Act, 2006.

(iii) This is first year of the company from the date of its incorporation therefore there
is no comparative amounts for corresponding previous year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Natwar Liquors Private Limited

VRPN

- .

Kewal Krishan Kohli

Director
DIN: 0127337 DIN: 0152760

New Delhi
12 August 2020



